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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
goooaoagnd

Overall Performance

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group generated turnover of
approximately HK$25.9 million (2013: approximately HK$34.2 million)
with a loss for the year of approximately HK$34.6 million (2013:
approximately HK$8.6 million). The reduction in loss for the year was
mainly because of the recognition of the impairment losses on goodwill,
available-for-sale investments and certain tax provision which were
referred to in the Company’s announcements dated 18 July 2014 and 25
July 2014. Due to the uncertainty of the market environment, we have
been adopting a conservative and prudent strategy in our Property
segment, as well as sustaining relatively stable rental income for the
Group. Our Securities segment has been operating to achieve appropriate
risk-adjusted returns which contributed a net realised and unrealised
loss on securities investment during this year as compared with a gain on
securities investment in the previous year. Our Food & Beverage business
has been gradually improving its cost control in view of challenges in labour
shortage and rising salaries in the PRC. We have been facing an increase in
competitive environment in this industry whilst we will continue to explore
different market strategies in order to strengthen our income stream in
the Financial Services segment. During this year, our Technology & Media
segment has generated income growth as we continue to seek different
business and investment opportunities to optimise its income source.

Business Review
Financial Services

During this year, the revenue of our financial services businesses reflected
no significant change as compared to last year.

Securities

Our securities business recorded a net realised and unrealised loss on
trading of securities investment of approximately HK$1.0 million (2013:
gain of approximately HK$1.6 million), which contributed a loss for
our securities segment of approximately HK$1.0 million (2013: gain of
approximately of HK$2.0 million) for the year ended 30 April 2014.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property business segment was approximately
HK$5.3 million (2013: approximately HK$3.9 million). The business segment
contributed a profit of HK$9.2 million (2013: profit of approximately
HK$17.3 million) to the Group. Excluding the gain on unrealised fair value,
the recurring profit of the property business segment would have been
approximately HK$4.4 million (2013: approximately HK$3.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
oooooon

Technology & Media

Our technology & media business recorded revenue of approximately
HK$1.6 million (2013: HK$0.1 million) with a business segment loss for
the year of approximately HK$10.6 million (2013: loss of approximately
HK$1.5 million).

Food & Beverage

During the year, revenue for our food & beverage businesses was
approximately HK$19.5 million (2013: approximately HK$27.7 million),
resulting in a segment loss of approximately HK$8.5 million (2013: loss of
approximately HK$5.1 million).

Seasonal/Cyclical Factors

The sales volume during festive periods is normally higher than the sales
volume in the slack periods of the year for food & beverage operations.

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cashand bankbalancesasat30April 2014 amounting
to approximately HK$51.6 million (2013: approximately HK$74.1 million).
The Group’s current ratio as at 30 April 2014 was 1.8 (2013: 2.0). The total

equity of the Group amounted to approximately HK$265.9 million (2013:
approximately HK$299.6 million) as at 30 April 2014.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings and finance lease payable
to total equity, was 0.14 as at 30 April 2014 (2013: 0.13).

4 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
goooaoagnd

Exchange Rate Exposure

As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$51.6 million, the majority of which was in Hong Kong
dollars. Since the majority of the Group’s transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi, with relatively stable exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars and Hong Kong'’s linked exchange rate between United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar, the Group has minimal exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its ordinary operations with internally
generated resources and bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowings,
if applicable, are generally charged by reference to prevailing market rates.

Commitments

The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2013: nil).

Future Prospects

Looking forward, the business environment is expected to remain uncertain
all over the world. With rising labour costs and increase in competitive
environment of the financing sector, the Group will continue to maintain
its policy in stringent cost control, to optimize efficiency and enhance
better financial results.

Apart from the existing business, the Group will continue to seek possible
business and investment opportunities to diversify its business portfolio, as
well as to maximize shareholders’ interest.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 April 2014, the Group had 104 (2013: 144) employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
remunerates its employees based on industry practices. Its staff benefits,
welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if any, are made in
accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of its
operating entities.

ooon

RZZE—MFMNA=+H  AEEZHE KIE
1T#E 8 (RZ LB TTHIME) 451,600,000/ 7T °
HRAEEZXER S - EEEERABHIIN
BT ETTRARKBIE  MARBEAETZ
E?Zu&%fcéﬁiiﬁﬂ‘ﬁ%i’éﬁrfﬁEmﬁ%ﬁ%
AR 2 ER R B R E o

ooon

AEE-—RIKENBELERRBITERSE
E%‘?&%%ﬁkﬁf tBER - %féfZﬂ?- (zn
BR) I R2RBITMIHNRGTHE

~

O
0

FR AEBYEERAERNAEZ (ZT—=
FE)

gooo

RERK  FHEREHRRREFTETHA
HE - NS TR LT A N & B0 18 P b
BRANZBE - ANEBSERES LEREE
IR A Z R FEABICRR R I B

=
4 o

AEBRIRNBEBI - TS SRERK TR
REBE B  BRSEBHAEBZ T
WERBRMSmEAL

goooooo

RZZT—MNEMA=+H  AKEEREBLT
BIHIEAR104% (ZT—=F 1 144%) B8 - &
SEfAREEERATNEAMBREL T
WATMSLBESEEE - MRRNEBZELER
BT RASRKIEELBE R - REETHIR
BERNEFREREERME - AEEZET
Pz BH - BREREEHK (IE) Thik
BEAAXRRRELEER RIS IEGIMIE
Hj o

00000000« 53R 2014 5

st .%H



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
HRERERN

Executive Directors

Mr Vong Tat leong, David, aged 52, has been a director of the Company
since 2005 and serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. MrVong
has acquired and run public companies, and made and advised on cross-
border mergers and acquisitions, involving capital markets and private
equity, for over 20 years. He was formerly Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was Director and Deputy Chief
Executive of 1100 Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since
he co-founded the i100 Group in 2000 with an international consortium
whose key participants included management and leading institutional
investors. Prior to that, he was Chief Executive at Pollon Infrastructure
Corporation, an infrastructure investment holding company focused on
power and telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is a graduate of
Yale Law School and The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr Xu Siping, aged 56, has been a director of the Company since 2005
and held a series of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRC's
State Economic and Trade Commission and the National Development and
Reform Commission (formerly the State Planning Commission), from 1983-
2000, before retiring from public service in the central government. Mr Xu
is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Director of Finance at
Golden Concord Holdings Limited and an Executive Director of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Dr Lam Lee G, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 2005. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
and Sciences, a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of
Business Administration, all from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a
Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from Carleton University
in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and
a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan University in the

6 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
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U.K., a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws from the University of Wolverhampton in the U.K.,
a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong SCS, and a Doctor of Philosophy from the University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lam has international experience in general management,
management consulting, corporate governance, investment banking and
fund management across the telecommunications/media/technology
(TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real estates and financial
services sectors. He is Chairman — Indochina, Myanmar and Thailand (and
formerly Chairman — Hong Kong), and Senior Adviser — Asia, of Macquarie
Capital. Actively participating in community service, Dr. Lam has served as
a part-time member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms and as a member
of the Legal Aid Services Council of Hong Kong, and is a member of the
Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a specially-invited member of the
Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC), a member of the New Business Committee of the
Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), a member of the Derivatives
Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEx), a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a board member
of the East-West Center Foundation, a member of the World Presidents’
Organization (WPO) and the Chief Executives Organization (CEO), a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, an accredited mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR), a member of the General Council and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies,
a vice president of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a founding
board member and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce, a board member of the Australian Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, Chairman of Monte Jade Science
and Technology Association of Hong Kong, and a visiting professor (in the
subjects of corporate governance and investment banking) at the School of
Economics & Management of Tsinghua University in Beijing. He is Chairman
of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a
member of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna, aged 48, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at UBM
Asia, a Director of Xact Limited, and was formerly Regional Marketing
Manager at American Express, and Management Consultant at The Mitchell
Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia Business School
and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HRERERERN

The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial
statements of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities
businesses, property businesses, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage businesses. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for
the year ended 30 April 2014 is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2014 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 22 to 25. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
do not recommend payment of any dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated financial results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on page 150. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Lease Premium for
Land and Investment Properties

Details of movementsin the property, plant and equipment, lease premium
for land and investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 13 to 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group’s properties are set out on pages 151 and 152.

8 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
goodd

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in
notes 32 and 33 to the financial statements, respectively.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither of the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30
April 2014.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$243.9 million.
This includes the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of approximately HK$540.6 million as at 30 April 2014, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, the Company’s capital redemption reserve in the
amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year.
Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HRERERERN

Commitments

The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2013: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 39 to the financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Fung Ka Keung, David

Dr Lam Lee G.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr
Xu Siping and Dr Lam Lee G., will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Board of Directors is satisfied with
the independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

10 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr Vong Tat leong, David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary
of the Group commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Mr Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 April 2014, the interests and short positions of the Director and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
were set out as follows:
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ooogao
Interests in the Shares of the Company ooooooooo
The Company/ Appropriate
Name of percentage of
Name of Director associated company Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
oood ooooooooon 00 oood ooooooo
Mr Vong Tat leong, The Company Held through 3,962,000,000 67.61%
David (Note) ViN/NE]| a controlled ordinary shares
=miZGRE (i) corporation of HK$0.001 each
FBPTIEHIMERE  3,962,000,000/%
A GAREI{E0.001
BT E AR
Note: ~ The interest of Mr Vong is held by Vongroup Holdings Limited, of which he is the ~— Mfit - EERAZERIBEEREEE=ERAZET

ultimate beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2014, none of the Directors had
registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 33 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 30 April 2014, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued

share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

12 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

I

Interest in capital
Name of shareholders shares ooooooo
oo0oooon oooo oo0ooon
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Note)
HIEBLE (M) 3,962,000,000 67.61%
Vongroup Holdings Limited (Note)
BN EEERER AR (#:2) 3,962,000,000 67.61%

Note:  The relationship between Vongroup Holdings Limited and Mr Vong is disclosed

under “Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2014, no person other than the
Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” had registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011
(the “New Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the
Company, at their discretion, may grant options to Directors, officers and
employees (whether full time or part-time) of the Company or a subsidiary
and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers, sub-contractors
or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group. No share options were outstanding nor granted during the year
ended 30 April 2014.

Connected Transactions
Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year

ended 30 April 2014, which also constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information
on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

A resolution for re-appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Vong Tat leong, David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 July 2014

14 Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the
quality of corporate governance so to ensure better transparency of
the Company, protection of shareholders’ and stakeholders’ rights and
enhance shareholder value.

Corporate Governance

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviation from code provisions
A.2.1,A4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ™) should be performed by different individuals. Since September
2005, Mr Vong Tat leong, David, who is a director and CEO of the Company,
has also carried out the responsibilities of the chairman of the Company.
The Board considers the present structure is more suitable to the Company
for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow for more
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-executive
Directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are not appointed for a specificterm but are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years as specified in the Bye-laws of the Company.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors shall
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. There are three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company and they were unable to attend the 2013 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 September 2013 due to their
engagement in their own commitments.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to directors will be arranged whenever
necessary.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”). Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 30 April 2014.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 30 April 2014, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five
members: two executive Directors, namely, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr Xu Siping; and three independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, who has the professional and
accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Dr Lam Lee G. and
Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on pages 6 and
7 of this Annual Report.

Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business
development. The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues
and valuate the financial performance of the Group. The Board will
consider and approve acquisition and disposal, remuneration policy,
appointment and retirement of directors, connected transactions, placing
and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company
is elected at each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the
Company is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the management
of the Company.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 4 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2014 and
additional Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors
who cannot attend in person might participate through other electronic
means of communications. Due notice and relevant materials for the
meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

Members of the Board Attended/Held

Mr VONG Tat leong, David 4/4
Mr XU Siping 4/4
Mr FUNG Ka Keung, David 4/4
Dr LAM Lee G. 3/4
Ms WONG Man Ngar, Edna 3/4
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Relationship Among Members of the Board

There is no relationship among members of the Board in respect of
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

According to the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s articles of association, and the terms of their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election. As such,
the Board considers that sufficient measures are in place to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
set out in the CG Code.

Board Committees

The Board has established four board committees to strengthen its
functions and corporate governance practices, namely, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee perform their specific roles in accordance with
their respective written terms of reference. The Executive Committee assists
the Group in corporate strategy, business development and operations.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent
non-executive Directors, currently, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr Fung Ka Keung, David and Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna. The
Audit Committee members performed their duties within written terms of
reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships
between the Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of
non-audit services), monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, any issues arising from the audit and any other auditors
may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal control and risk
management.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2013 and for the six months ended
31 October 2013, considered and approved the audit work of the auditors
and reviewed the business and financial performance of the Company and
the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2014 have been reviewed by
the Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, and one executive Director, Mr
Vong Tat leong, David. The Remuneration Committee members performed
their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible of developing remuneration
policies and in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors whether
the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and performance
of the respective individuals concerned. It is the Company’s policy to offer
remuneration packages which are competitive and sufficient to retain
such individuals and no Director is involved in decision of his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and approved the remuneration of Directors according to their
respective responsibilities, expertise and performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David
and one executive Director, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee members performed
their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination Committee
also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The amount of audit fee payable to CCIF CPA Limited for the year ended 30
April 2014 was HK$700,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control system to safeguard
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of internal controls
and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions within an established framework.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year under review. The Directors ensure the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
requirements and suitable accounting policies.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this Annual Report.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its shareholders through different
channels, including annual general meetings, special general meetings,
annual and interim reports, notices of general meetings and circulars
sent to shareholders by post, announcements on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website.

Registered shareholders are notified by post of the shareholders’ meetings.
Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend and vote at the annual and
special general meetings, provided that his/her/its shares have been fully
paid up and recorded in the register of members of the Company.

Shareholders or investors can make enquiries or proposals to the Company
by putting their enquiries or proposals to the Company through the contact
details listed in our Company’s website.
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CCIF
CCIF CPA LIMITED
R R BRI IEFAARAT
9/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
FE R ISRETTR
TSR0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
22 to 149, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 April 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statementsthat givea trueand fairview in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,

and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April
2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 July 2014

Leung Chun Wa
Practising Certificate Number P04963
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Oo0ooooao
For the year ended 30 April 2014 B Z—F—UFWWA=+HILFE
2014 2013
goooao —E—=%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E ooo THET
Turnover ooo 5 25,939 34,216
Other revenue H A Yz 1,939 1,706
Other gains H b 2 F 4,216 960
Cost of inventories consumed KOEFETR B 20(b) (10,332) (9,728)
Staff costs BIRA (23,860) (19,097)
Operating lease rentals rEMOHAS (5,276) (5,210)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEREE (1,551) (2,159)
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE 16 (4,631) (1,581)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AEEERE Y
investment WIEEE 19 (9,430) =
Other expenses HihFx< (14,248) (21,359)
Change in fair value of investment properties BEME L N TERE) 15 4,850 13,725
Loss from operations oooo 6 (32,384) (8,527)
Finance costs B RSP AR 7 (507) (549)
Loss before taxation oooon (32,891) (9,076)
Income tax FR1SHE 8(a) (1,691) 475
Loss for the year attributable to oooooooo
owners of the Company oooon (34,582) (8,601)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for theyear 00000000 M O00O
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HigrlgeE5n 3
to profit or loss Bm2EE
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBING B A BB 7%
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries MEREEZIEREZR 830 (1)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ooooooon
attributable to owners of the Company oooooooo (33,752) (8,602)
Loss per share oooo
— Basic and diluted —BERREE 12 (HK$0.0059) (HK$0.0015)

HJd?

The notes on pages 29 to 149 form an integral part of these financial £29H 2 51498 7 MR S8 HRE 2 —

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

gooodogno
As at 30 April 2014 R=—ZE—MEMA=+H

2014 2013
noooo —E—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(i ooa FET
Non-current assets gooon
Property, plant and equipment W - BE M&E 13 15,660 17,093
Lease premium for land T E 14 - 1,392
Investment properties KEMSE 15 187,882 182,751
Goodwill G 16 - 4,631
Deposits paid for acquisition of REEYE - BE
property, plant and equipment MBI NzEe 18 367 274
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 19 2,452 16,882
206,361 223,023
Current assets gooao
Lease premium for land THAEE 14 - 34
Inventories rE 20 3,871 6,979
Forfeited collateral held for sale FRE 1R WK 1 & 20 583 493
Accounts receivable B I BR 3R 21 1,756 273
Moneylending loan receivables W EE R 22 4,388 4,784
Deposits, prepayments and e BRERR
other receivables Hth fE U BR FX 23 33,695 24700
Equity investments at fair value BAFERERSIERS
through profit or loss BEHEE 24 32,815 26,877
Tax recoverable AU e IE 31(a) - 22
Deposits placed with financial institutions & BB TE 25 6,423 13,362
Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4ES 26 51,647 74,069
135,178 151,593
Current liabilities oooo
Accounts payable FETBR K 27 1,993 1,704
Accruals and deposits received EETFA R B WiZ S 28 13,341 13,072
Tax payable JEN 1A 31(a) 23,547 22,101
Finance lease FET B E M4
payable — current portion OB — BERES 29 - 125
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 35,982 37,904
74,863 74,906
Net current assets gooooa 60,315 76,687
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Oo0ooooao
As at 30 April 2014 R-—ZE—FEMA=+H
2014 2013
gooooo —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt oo FHT
Total assets less current liabilities goo0ooooao 266,676 299,710
Non-current liabilities ooooo
Finance lease FETREEFRAY
payable — long-term portion FKIE — RIS 29 - 70
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIEEE 31(h) 788 =
788 70
NET ASSETS oooa 265,888 299,640
CAPITAL AND RESERVES oooono
Share capital A& s 32 5,860 5,860
Reserves s 260,028 293,780
TOTAL EQUITY oo 265,888 299,640

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 July

2014.

On behalf of the board

VONG TAT IEONG DAVID
ooo
Director

EF

The notes on pages 29 to 149 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

[ EREREEN
As at 30 April 2014 R=—ZE—MEMA=+H
2014 2013
ooooo —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B et oo FHET
(Restated)
(=75)
Non-current assets gooono
Investments in subsidiaries B AR ZILE 17(a) - —
Current assets ogooao
Deposits, prepayments and e BREZRK
other receivables A WL BR 3K 23 - 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NG E e 17(b) 249,807 277,648
Cash and bank balances He MIRITER 26 16,092 17,022
265,899 294,691
Current liabilities oooo
Accruals and deposits received FERTRIE R B WikE 28 27 2,723
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A RIFRIE 17(c) 16,100 36,097
Net current assets goooon 16,127 38,820
NET ASSETS gooao 249,772 255,871
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Ooo0o0O0o
Share capital [N 32 5,860 5,860
Reserves f#f 34 243,912 250,011
TOTAL EQUITY ooo 249,772 255,871

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 July

2014.

On behalf of the board

VONG TAT IEONG DAVID
ooo
Director

EF

The notes on pages 29 to 149 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Oo0ooooao
For the year ended 30 April 2014 B2 =L —UFMH =+ HIEFE
Capital Statutory Exchange
Share Share  redemption surplus  translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
oo oo
oo oooo gooono oo0no 0o0o o0ooo oo
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAn ThL AL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 May 2012 RZE-—FHA-H 5,860 533,020 262 270 1,686 (232,856) 308,242
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (8,601) (8,601)
Exchange differences on translation A& &S\HTBL A
of financial statements of ABREEEL
overseas subsidiaries EHES - - = = (1) - (1)
Total comprehensive loss ERNEEFEESE
for the year - - - - (1) (8,601) (8,602)
At 30 April 2013 and 1 May 2013 RZE-ZFMA=THRK
“F-=FRf-H 5,860 533,020 262 270 1,685 (241457) 299,640
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - (34,582) (34,582)
Exchange differences on translation ~ AZ/ESHBAF
of financial statements of MBRRELL
overseas subsidiaries ELER - - - - 830 - 830
Total comprehensive loss ERNZAFEAH
for the year - - - - 830 (34,582) (33,752)
At 30 April 2014 “E-NENA=1A 5,860 533,020 262 270 2,515 (276,039) 265,888
The notes on pages 29 to 149 form an integral part of these financial 5298 =5 1498 » MiHBRIL S EHRER 2 —
statements. #hoy o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

gooodogno
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZEZ_Z—FWA=+HIEFE

2014 2013
oooog  —E—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = ooo FET
(Restated)
(#=&7)
Operating activities oooOd
Loss before taxation BRTLAIEE (32,891) (9,076)
Adjustments for: MRERE
Bank interest income WITHEHA 5 (108) (132)
Finance costs IR IDWN 7 507 549
Dividend income from listed securities LIRS ZREWA 5,6 (572) (760)
Gain from deregistration of SEBERH
a joint venture Az Weas 5,6 - (470)
Gain on disposal of lease premium for land HE TS 2 W 5 (2,011) -
Other interest income H A 2 HA 5 (803) (803)
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE 16 4,631 1,581
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investment BIEEE 19 9,430 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 13 1,540 2,125
Amortisation of lease premium for land 3R o B A 14 1 34
Change in fair value of equity investments at BRAFENERVIR 2
fair value through profit or loss BERE 2 NTHER 4,267 3,104
Change in fair value of investment properties WEMEZ NFEE 15 (4,850) (13,725)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREWE 2 W 5,6 - (490)
Written back of accruals W SH FE AT RUE 5 (2,205) -
(23,054) (18,063)
Changes in working capital oooooo
Decrease in inventories FER D 3,108 732
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale FRE W8 YUK IR G 8 1 (90) (213)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEM AR R (32 0),/ R (1,483) 198
Decrease in moneylending loan receivables e EE TR 396 18,242
Increase in deposits, prepayments e BNERIRK
and other receivables H & U AR 5R3E N (8,192) (6,346)
Decrease in amount due from a joint venture & ST TERE D - 234
(Increase)/decrease in equity investments at BAFENERMERZ
fair value through profit or loss FEHRE (3gm),/ md (10,205) 62
Decrease/(increase) in deposits placed SEREBEIORD ()
with financial institutions 6,939 (6,036)
Decrease in derivative financial instrument PTEMB TR/ - 16,159
Increase in accounts payable JE AT BR 338 A 289 509
Increase in accruals and deposits received JE=T 7R M B Wk & 1N 2,474 1,104
Cash (used in)/generated from operations Ooooomoooo (29,818) 6,582
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B EREMEH 31(a) (17) (22)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded EREFRBEPEMGH 31(a) - 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBMEH 31(a) - (134)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREBENEH 31(a) 22 -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from ooooooo
operating activities OOo0oO0maoogn (29,813) 6,444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Oo0ooooao
For the year ended 30 April 2014 B Z—F—UFWWA=+HILFE
2014 2013
ooooo  —T—=%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE 000 FET
(Restated)
(JE5)
Investing activities oooo
Bank interest received EYERITHIE 5 108 132
Dividend received from listed securities B ETMESFKRE 5 572 760
Acquisition of investment properties BEREYHE - (7,845)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment HEEWE  HMEREE (72) (476)
Increase in deposits paid in respect of MBEYE  BEKL
acquisition of property, BB 2R EM
plant and equipment 18 (106) (19)
Proceeds from deregistration of BECERUEEM 2
a joint venture FT{S 3R 5,6 - 470
Net proceeds from disposal of investment properties  H &% & Y% Fr /8 208,558 - 10,830
Net proceeds from disposal of lease premium for land & +ithFH S 7 PSR F5E 3,462 =
Return on investment in Newport A Newport 2 5 & Was 19(ii) 5,000 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, BEMEATF -
net of cash acquired NEEAZRE 35 - (52,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from ooooooao
investing activities 0000 moogog 8,964 (48,148)
Financing activities oooo
Bank interest paid EATIRITHE 7 (497) (534)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid EfNREHEE 2 F B 7 (10) (15)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (1,922) (1,890)
Repayment of finance lease payable BERNBERONE (195) (108)
Net cash outflow from financing activities gogooooooooooo (2,624) (2,547)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ooooooooooooo (23,473) (44,251)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNHE TR SR A ) 7 SO 1,051 (1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear 000000000000 74,069 118,321
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 0000000o0o0ooo 26 51,647 74,069

The notes on pages 29 to 149 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

1. Corporate information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111. The address
of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at 30 April 2014,
Vongroup Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, which owns 67.61% of the issued share capital of the
Company, is the parent and the ultimate holding company and Mr.
Vong Tat leong, David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong

includes all

Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

30

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
April 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except for
per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties and equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss that have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 & ZE —ZT WM/ =+H tFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 38.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Aninvestmentin asubsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 000000 (&

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (0 OOOO0000000 (&0

32

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

— a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(d) Business combinations (Continued) d o000 (&)

— assetsorliabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 19
Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

34

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(d) Business combinations (Continued) d o000 (&)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
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(e) Joint ventures (e OO0O0

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Oooa0 (&)

(e) Joint ventures (Continued) fe) OO0 (#&)

36

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year and the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(e) Joint ventures (Continued) (e OOO0O (&)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(g)

38

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If some or all
of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that
unit shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current
annual period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carryingamount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see note

2(i)):

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 & ZE —ZT WM/ =+H tFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 00O0Oooo (&)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) @ OOoOOO0O00 (&)

- Leasehold improvements  20% or over the
remaining term of the
lease, if shorter

- Furniture, fixtures and 10% — 20%
equipment

- Motor vehicles 20%

- Utensils and supplies 33-1/3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carryingamount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

40

(h) Investment properties

(1)

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(v)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
fora currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(I)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(v)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(v).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) o000 (&)

() KAEZRERE M ERFRAZ
HR1E (&)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Ifany such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

Forinvestments in joint venturesaccounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements
(see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(i)
(il). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 000000 (&

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) o000 (&)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () BRAZFLLERAMBEKIA
receivables (Continued) JBt1E (4B)

42

For accounts receivables and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 00O0Oooo (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) o000 (&)

(i) BRAZFZREREMBERFEAZ

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale securities which are stated at
fair value, when a decline in the fair value has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of accounts receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0ooooo (&)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) o000 (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BAMEEZHE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at RE B2 R G EHRE R RRN A
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that B R INRE R HRIRATETE T3 &
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case EBGLBRAEZTR At
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no R REEE (HERERIN)
longer exists or may have decreased: EBTHBEEXERD
—  property, plant and equipment; — W BB REE
— deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and — BEEYE - BERREE
equipment;
— lease premium for land; — THIAES
—  goodwill; and - ®mER
— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement — RARBHBARRAK ZHE
of financial position. RNEHRE °
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is MEEEMZERR - BlfEEE
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount EZAI BI85 o AN BB
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication mE - Timed B AR ED
of impairment. R HEGEHETAIKEIEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooood

For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE ==

—EMA=1THILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use, (if determinable.)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0ooooo (&)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) o000 (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) RMEEZHE (&)
—  Reversals of impairment losses — EEREEE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment MEE (TREFE)MS -
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change s AEET E Al Bl 858 2
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable HErHIRA A E 8 - Bl ] #
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is EBEEZREEE FEZ
not reversed. REEED T -
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s e 2 REEEURRBE
carrying amount that would have been determined FENEERREEEMmE
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. ErTCEERABEAR - &
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or BEEBELBNEDERZF
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised. EEt AEa ©
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iif) FHRII & KA E
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the BEBBERIMBERARZS L
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required MRARTE - A% .//\L/Eﬁi;/’%
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with 2 5T 2RI 53455 FR HA BA 7% R 5 4
HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first LEBYBREEENEA 2FH
six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim WEHE - RPEHR  ~&H
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, FERRI B EERERTERZ
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of EEDREAR - R R E AR
the financial year.
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect e A R B BB SR IARK
of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted RY|ER 2 Al ERAEH K I
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a AR R EEEE R
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller BRf NSO - BN E R ez HA
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been B A B 2 BB S AR A R P
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the 2 R E R e s TR R B 1R Bk
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an BAOEE - TR EBRAREER R
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder EEEDTEER - Bt - KA
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, HEEREAFTS 2 A TFERHB
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income ™6 5 HA RS SR fa] 1% BARE 18
and not profit or loss. hn- BIE RS IR E b2 E ik Es

i FEHE R R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Oooa0 (&)

(k) Other investments in equity securities (Continued) (k) OO0O00000 (&)

48

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on
these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(I)(v) and (ii).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for
an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)). Dividend
income from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the
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cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit VERIEL NERERZ BT RES
or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the %ﬁi%ﬁ“* EEm o RAEEARE

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
() Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Revenue from food and beverage businesses

Revenue from food and beverage businesses is recognised
when catering services have been provided to customers.

(i) Interest income

Interest income (including financial services income) is
recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method.

(iii) Sales of forfeited collateral

Sales of forfeited collateral are recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the forfeited collateral is delivered and
the title has passed to customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

50

(v)

(v)

(vi)

() Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Revenue from technology and media business

Revenue from technology and media business is recognised
when the services have been performed to customers.

(vii) Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss include realised gains/losses which
are recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value
gains/losses which are recognised in the period in which they
arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(i)).

Moneylending loan receivables

Loansand receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
ordeterminable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
other than (i) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or
in the near term, which are classified as held for trading; (ii) those
that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (iii) those
where the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment, other than because of credit deterioration, which will
be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly
comprise pawn loans and unsecured loans. Pawn loans are loans
provided whereby personal property such as gold, jewellery and
diamonds, watches and consumer electronic products are used as
collateral for the security of the loans. Unsecured loans are loans
without collateral.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see note

2(i)).
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Oooa0 (&)

(p) Translation of foreign currencies (p) OO0O0O

52

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 May 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 May 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(p) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued) ) OO00O (&)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposal of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

(q) Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June
2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 & —=

—HEMA=1THIEFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

54

(q) Defined contribution retirement scheme

(r)

(Continued)

The Group’s PRC operations participate in defined contribution
retirement plans managed by the local municipal government
in the locations in which it operates. The PRC operations are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for
all its PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The relevant authority
of the local municipal government in the PRC is responsible
for the retirement benefit obligations payable to the Group’s
retired employees. The Group has no obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contribution. The
contribution payable is charged as an expense to profit or loss as
and when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(1

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral are initially recognised at the amortised cost of
the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession, which
is generally below the net realisable value of the repossessed
assets. Upon repossession of the assets, the related loans and
advances together with the related impairment allowances, if
any, are derecognised from the statement of financial position.
Subsequently, forfeited collateral is carried at the lower of the
amount initially recognised or net realisable value and are
therefore written down if and when the net realisable value falls
to below the carrying amount of the asset. The excess of the net
proceeds over the carrying amount of the forfeited collateral is
recognised as a gain upon the disposal of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

56

(u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 0000Ooa (&

(u) Income tax (Continued) (w) OO0 (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 000000 (&
(u) Income tax (Continued) (W OO0 (%&)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of RERED IR ZEBINTIFB RIS B
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related BARR B2 B AR R IR o

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements BIERFR B 45 62 OB RER B AR A KRB

therein, are presented separately from each other and are not BAEFEFEIES] > WA T -

offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, RNAT AN EE B ETE Al 58 $l 31T

and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the NGBV HATE 18 & = BN EAT IE B E K

Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off i - BRFA AT EEIMEM - BIBDEARS

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following REESENPTIES EMEEE  mE

additional conditions are met: AETIE E B A BRI ITE B EAEE
8 -

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company — BEHBBEEEREGEMS @ &
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to NERAEBEIZFEHEELSE
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or SRSV EERSMNEE X

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate — BMELEHBEERBEMS @ M
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on LR RSB T A ER — 75
either: B 2 FriSti B
—  the same taxable entity; or — ARERTERE %

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period — TAEXAHERE BHERS
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities BRSNS MEEXNETE
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, ZEERBEERNEEZH
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the BEAME - BIRFEEEER
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle B ERFR 18 & & s 1 BN EA R
simultaneously. THB ERRRFEE BN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(v) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases,
with the following exceptions:

—  Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
isaccounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note
2(h)); and

— Land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. 000000 (&

(v) Leased assets (Continued) v) 0000 (&)

(i) ABEHAINIEZ BE

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

60

(ifi)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(i). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 2(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contribution
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year under review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

(1)

(1)
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

62

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(x)

()

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(z) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

64

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

(aa)Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision maker (‘CODM”), being senior executive management
of the Company, for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong 3. 000o0oooooooOoooOODoOO
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) Omoo00ooooom
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and RAFE  AEBERNBTBSEMAE
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. FRREM NHETE] RESIERI B A MR ELE
Al o
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BEMBRE BSR4
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle i3: —ETNEFZE
—T——FHfE
FEME
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of B asr £l Hip2EK=IEE 27
Other Comprehensive Income LA H)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures-Offsetting Financial Assets ARMBREER  RE - MEMBEER
and Financial Liabilities EyEid ) HBarE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, BAUBREER  GRAMBERE - ZRRH
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of F10% - BENE  REEREMERZ
Interests in Other Entities: WMEEASENRE  Em BENEE
Transition Guidance BB LER]
F125K 2 B5]
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BRI BRE fRE M BEREK
HERIZE105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BBBRE HREZH
ERIZE1
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities BEUBRE BEREMERE Ex
AERI 1288
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BRI BRE NERE
HERIZE135%
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits BGENFE19R  EERETF
(ZT——5FLK1E5])
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements BRGRIERIE  BUMSHRE
(ZF——FE1EB)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and ARSI ERESY REMERAR
Joint Ventures (Z2——FLER]) AELEIRE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase A% (ERBHRE BREEERRZ
of a Surface Mine ZEBZE®) FIRRA
— RBE0%R
Except as described below, the application of the new and revised BRINSCATaE SN - RANFE RG] R
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s 1ERT BB TSI S R mE AR E AR
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years ERBEFEMBRERMRDE, Hi%

AP RAR REEREKREXN

4

and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

W 4

Iy

gig
&

o

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong 3. 0000D0O0O00ODO0O0O0O0OO0OO
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) OMo00000000m#E)
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle oooooooooooooon
oooooooonnn
This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five LHHAR 2 FE M E &?‘Eﬁlﬁf&ﬁ'JZf’éﬁT
standards with consequential amendments to other standards and W E A ER R 2 EELAEESE] -
interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify - BASTEREIREEE uTJ/A V‘/%?-?
that an opening statement of financial position is required only when ERTEVERASFTECR - (EHBBET
a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective KEFHLEIEER - MERZEEEE Y]
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect on the WBRREREVN 2 ERBEEERTE - A
information presented in the opening statement of financial position. EEBAEZV B BEARNE - ZFIEET N
The amendments also remove the requirement to present related R B 4N B IS AR R R 2516 - 251 H 4B
notes to the opening statement of financial position when such MIEE 2 RE - BB HREBERTZ275
statement is presented. These amendments do not have any material FEZEEEBRI BRI EEATER
impact on the results of operations and financial position of the Group B o
for the years presented.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of ooooooowooooon
Other Comprehensive Income ooooooo
The amendments require entities to present separately the items REEHTEBIEEREETHRETH
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit RABEFEST »BEEER A2 E K=
or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that HE - BT eEfoEEEas s e
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of AW=EE DHZS - ZEMBEME 2R
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of EERERERESIHEMEEKEREE
comprehensive income in these financial statements has been HARREIEER o

modified accordingly.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures-Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement
or similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7
during the periods presented.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation-Special
Purpose Entities. It introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use
its power to affect the amount of those returns. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect
of its involvement with other entities as at 1 May 2013.

=
-

3. looooooooboooonoo

OMOoOo0ooooomEE)

oooooooonzooooo
ooooooooooonn

ZEERI LRI B EERM B RESIA
HIWBERE - ZEMREREARBRNA
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25z A HERMB TR - AR
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B MEFT N REST RN RS ERIET7
S WBERTE Z RFREE R R U
& R FET T EREMHRE
ERFTE ©
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oo
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3.

68

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under
the arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified as joint
operations under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to
the extent of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All
other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS
11 and are required to be accounted for using the equity method
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 17.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. To the
extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in notes 15 and 39. The adoption
of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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4. Segment information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
which provide information about components of the Group. This
information is reported to and reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”), senior executive management, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
are reported internally to the Company’s CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the segment information by the following reportable
segments. These segments are managed separately. No operating
segments have been aggregated.

1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending,
other financial/business services
and related activities

2. Securities: Securities and related activities

3. Property: Real property and related activities

4. Technology & Media: Technology & media and
related activities

5, Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food &
beverage businesses and
related activities

6. Corporate treasury Management of treasury activities

management: of the Group and

related activities

4. 0000

REDRTIRAB IR E 2 LT ABSH -
MABRERHEASESEKIED ZE
o ZEERNARETERERRE (X2
REARRE])  BRITHERABEZR
WHEERN  AMEDEERERRNEZ
R °

AEBMBROMEREER - MoRBRILAZE
B (Em&RE) KtEESm IR - T)
HEARNTEBEERREFELAIL 2R
BRZTA -8 MMEDBEER KL RE
HZRE - AEBERATRATRBSRR
2IDBEN - WEN BB UEE - I
BOHTEEEDE -

1. SRARTE HEERE - W&
Hih e rh, %5
AR5 K AERRA B

2. BH: EER N E| DR 2)

3. ME: P E R AR RS

4. BT RIMRRENAR
GElEaDEE )

5. B RfERR -
HA R K
ElE )
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4. Segment information (Continued)

70

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s CODM monitors
the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales or financing activities generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets and
intangible assets directly attributable to each segment. Segment
liabilities include accounts payable, accruals and deposits
received, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
each segment and finance lease payable and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments.
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4, 0000 (&
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (@ OooooOoOoooooonn
(Continued) (&
Segment revenues and results SEEW s [
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TRZATHRFDBEONAEE 2K
from operations by reportable segments. T ISR o
Segment revenue Segment profit/(loss)
oooao goooOooooao
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30/4/2014 30/4/2013  30/4/2014 30/4/2013
oo HZE 00O HE
ooooo =Z£2—=% 0O0O0O0Oo ZZT—=#F
00000 MA=+H 00000 MmMA=+H
0oo0 IEFE ooa IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
0oQ THETT ooo FET
Financial services © Bl AR 75 631 956 (4,334) (1,431)
Securities B (1,039) 1,576 (981) 1,963
Property ES 5,279 3,915 9,202 17,260
Technology & Media iy K g 48 1,560 115 (10,630) (1,494)
Food & Beverage BN 19,508 27,654 (8,488) (5,146)
Corporate treasury management D38 &8 7,233 6,753 - =
Segment total DEERRET 33,172 40,969 (15,231) 11,152
Elimination 55 (7,233) (6,753) - =
Total 4B =t 25,939 34,216 (15,231) 11,152
Unallocated items: RHOMIEE :
Other revenue and other gains H S & E b Z R 5,200 1,361
Administrative and other 1T R EAth
operating expenses KERY (22,353) (21,040)
Finance costs EUR DN (507) (549)
Loss before taxation BRI AT EE (32,891) (9,076)
Income tax Frigt (1,691) 475
Loss for the year REEZEEE (34,582) (8,601)
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4, 0000 (&)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (@ OoOOoO00000000000
(Continued) (%)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DHEMW s R FEE ()
Segment revenue from financial services, property, technology & RESERTE - W5 - Bt R
media and food & beverage represents revenue generated from REBERZ BN EEINRBEFEEY
external customers. Segment revenue from securities represents Wes o REBHFZ D BER=EE R
revenue generated from trading of listed equity securities. MIRAFTHFEE W - REBFEHS
Segment revenue from corporate treasury management BERZ N HREEERASE l‘ﬁﬁ—FﬁK
represents revenue generated from funds financing to companies Nl E SR & FTEE 2 W o
within the Group. Funds financing activities between segments *ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁZéimEﬁé@)ﬁ&*ﬁETﬁ%ﬁEZ
are carried out at mutually agreed terms. ERFGETT ©
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same KENE 2 STBEREAEE 2 25
as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit represents BURAR o 2 8 FIE & o B R RER
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of other Al M AR AR S B T E R
revenue, administrative and other operating expenses and HURDBEARNIRIER cAEEHE
finance costs of the Group that are not allocated to individual s - TR R EMEEFH S RS
segments are classified as unallocated items. This is the measure RAVER IR © bt ABLE RS B R
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and EOEREMRAEBLERREZR
assessment of segment performance. ZETE ©
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

4, 0O0O0O (&

@ OOo00oooooooooo

(Continued) (&
Segment assets and liabilities STHEEEREE
2014 2013
ooooo goooao
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo FETT
Segment assets agooao
Financial services B Rt R 20,083 24,684
Securities 75 5 48,774 36,414
Property M 194,254 190,513
Technology & Media g R f pE 10,790 16,774
Food & Beverage B 12,551 13,664
Corporate treasury management TEPBER 19,087 52,783
Total segment assets BEOREE 305,539 334,832
Unallocated property, plant and equipment RO EEWE - HE K&E 14,932 15,936
Unallocated available-for-sale investments — AOE At HERSE 1,532 1,532
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents RAOBERS KRS EEEH 1,330 958
Unallocated other receivables * K50 B £ fih & UL BR 30> 17,765 16,962
Unallocated other corporate assets AOMEMPEEE 441 4,396
Consolidated assets HREEBE 341,539 374,616
Segment liabilities ooono
Financial services & B AR TS 249 708
Property M 37,905 39,234
Technology & Media i K 68 82 29
Food & Beverage Z 35,309 30,909
Total segment liabilities wmoBaR 73,545 70,880
Unallocated liabilities AOBEAE 2,106 4,096
Consolidated liabilities wEaE 75,651 74,976

* Unallocated other receivables represent the right arising from the termination

of an available-for-sale investment in Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited.

Ry BLE At FE YR TR B AR LE TR R K BE
FRERERARZAIHHEREMES

ZHER -
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. 0000 (&
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (@ OoOOoO00000000000

(Continued) (%)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DHEEEREE (B)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MEESIBRALRDEESEER

allocating resources between segments: MmE

— segment assets exclude certain property, plant and - NHEBEETBEEREE—HEEZ
equipment, available-for-sale investments, cash and bank ETYE - BERZE - ATHE
balances and other unallocated corporate assets as these ERE BERIRITES UK
assets are managed on a group basis. HihRDBLEFEEE ©

— segment liabilities exclude certain accruals and deposits - DBEaETRERE—HEREY
received and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these ETEFHREREWIZS REA
liabilities are managed on a group basis. ROBEFALE -

Other segment information (included in the measure of segment B o BEER (GTA DM F 218

profit or loss or regularly provided to the CODM) BERIER T F B4 E R RE)

Additions to Depreciation and
non-current assets amortisation
ogoooooo ogooon

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30/4/2014 30/4/2013  30/4/2014 30/4/2013
0O HE 0o HE
ooooo =—T—=% 00000 =ZE—=%F
00000 WA=+H O0OoDoOoO WA=+H
ooo IFFE ooa IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

oo FHET ooao FHET
Segment assets gooo
Financial services & R AR TS 43 20 1 7
Property )3 - 59,825 - =
Technology & Media i R iR A8 - - 2 14
Food & Beverage BER 7 398 418 714
Unallocated AOBE LR 128 77 1,120 1,424
Total Bt 178 60,320 1,551 2,159
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Other segment information (included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or regularly provided to the CODM) (Continued)

In addition to the depreciation and amortisation reported
above, impairment losses of goodwill of HK$4,631,000 (2013:
HK$1,581,000) was recognised. These impairment losses were
attributable to the following reportable segments:

Impairment losses recognised for the year in respect of goodwill:

oooo (&)

@ OOo00oooooooooo

(&

H D EER (T A a PSR
KRR T L EZEREKE) (4B)

bR bt 2o E REEN - BBR
PR (B 584,631,000/ T (ZZF—=
£ 11,581,000/ L) ° &2 SR BEE RS
BRTHIETERBRYHE

FABL R ERER < BUERETE -

Year ended Year ended
30/4/2014 30/4/2013
Ood Oood

ooooo ooooo
oooog ooooo

goood gooo

HK$’000 HK$’000

oo FHET

Financial services & R AR TS 4,631 1,581

(b) Geographic information

The Group’s operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Financial services, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Property businesses and securities businesses are carried out
mainly in Hong Kong.

(h) 0000

AEBZEENETERTEET - &
BARTS - BT RIRER AR BERE
BINBERTBEET - WEXB R
BHFEBTENEBET -
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. 0000 (&)
(b) Geographic information (Continued) () OO00O (#&)
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) RTROAEER 2 Wam RN EE 2
the Group’s revenue and (i) the Group’s property, plant and W BERZE  BEWE - i
equipment, investment properties, lease premium for land, He - REBEWE  BERZEHAN
deposits paid for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment R MEEZ DT - REB U
and goodwill. The geographical location of the Group’s revenue mATEHIEEIT R F 2R o ¥
refers to the location at which the transactions were taken place. MRE Ml REME - THES -
The geographical locations of property, plant and equipment, AREEYZE - BE REHEITIZ
investment properties, lease premium for land and deposits paid S TIRBREER S 2 BR
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are based on HEME - B ME @ NIKZSE
the physical location of the asset under consideration. In the case FEEESICHE| 2 &EHImIE

of goodwill, it is based on the location of the operation to which
this intangible is allocated.

Revenue Non-current assets
0ood goooo
Year ended Year ended At At
30/4/2014 30/4/2013 30/4/2014 30/4/2013
00 BZE oo BZE

ooooo0 —ZE—=% 0000o —E—=%
00000 WA=+H OO0ODO00DO0O MWAE=+H
ooo \HEFE ooo IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

ooo TET ooo TET

Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (8i1) 5,297 6,499 175,682 175,013

PRC i 20,322 27,420 11,927 18,028
Macau RF 320 297 16,300 13,100
Total 4=t 25,939 34,216 203,909 206,141

(c) Information about major customers ( oooooooon

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer REEBIFERCE,E - MEK
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for each of the ES-ZPEMAEERE_T—=
two years ended 30 April 2013 and 2014. FRZZE-—MFNA=THIEFES

7 ITER10%3 A F o
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5. Turnover, other revenue and other gains

The Group is principally engaged in financial services businesses,
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media
businesses and food & beverage businesses.

Turnover represents income from financial services businesses,
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media
businesses and food & beverage businesses received or receivable
during the year.

The Group’s turnover, other revenue and other gains for the year arose
from the following activities:

goooooooooooo

AEETERFESRRBEL  EFE
% MEED B RREBERFARER
ES

EERBHEAFEBSRRBEY - EFF
7% MERD  RREBRBFARER
STSWE S AT HER 2 LA ©

AEBEARFRE 2 EERH  HiblasREM
BNTSRBATESED

Group
oo
2014 2013
ooooo —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo FHET
Turnover ooo
Income from food & beverage businesses ZEREETE 2 WA 19,508 27,654
Income from technology & media businesses  H1i7 M & 275 2 W A 1,560 115
Net (loss)/gain on equity investments at BAFEAEZRSIR 2 &5
fair value through profit or loss K&z (B18),/ WaFE (1,039) 1,576
Financial services income ® BRARFS UL A 631 956
Gross rental income from REEREMEZ
investment properties @ WA 5,279 3,915
25,939 34,216
Other revenue oooo
Bank interest income RITHR B A 108 132
Other interest income E i 1 B U 803 803
Dividend income from listed securities EmFEHEZRERA 572 760
Management fee income LR PN 120 -
Sundry income HMIFU A 336 1
1,939 1,706
Other gains ooono
Gain from deregistration of a joint venture A EDERUHTM 2 W - 470
Gain on disposal of lease premium for land HeE+IHEE 7 IS 2,011 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEHEYE 7N - 490
Written back of accruals T 58 FE 5T RIR 2,205 =
4,216 960
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*  This item is included in other expenses.
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6. Loss from operations 6. OO
The Group’s loss from operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZLEEBIENE/(GEA) TH%
I8 :
2014 2013
oooono —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ood TET
Cost of inventories consumed (note 20(b)) LOHFETF E R (F1FE20(b)) 10,332 9,728
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEES
emoluments — note 9): B2 — F1zE9) -
Wages and salaries _T_;ﬁ&%tr/i\ 23,790 19,008
Defined contribution retirement benefits FRHFGRIRE T8I (X
scheme contributions 70 89
23,860 19,097
Auditor’s remuneration* TZ ENRm &+ 753 727
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - = MR EITE 1,540 2,125
Amortisation of lease premium for land + b FH 5 5 11 34
Exchange loss, net* b 5 E5 18 F 5m 14 61
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease KERHBE — &K
payments GEROENE 5,276 5,210
Rental income from investment properties wEYHE 2 S WA
less direct outgoings of HK$86,000 BB 2 11186,000/8 7T
(2013: HK$79,000) (ZZE—=%F : 79,00077T) (5,193) (3,836)
Dividend income from listed securities EFRESFZREWKA (572) (760)
Gain from deregistration of a joint venture BB ERUEM Z Wk - (470)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYHE 2 W - (490)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AEHEREZ
investment BEEE 9,430 -
Impairment loss on goodwill B R EEE 4,631 1,581

* EIRE B AEMR
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7. Finance costs 7. 0000
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo THETT
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly BENRSFRNRBEEY
repayable within five years IRITEEF B 493 534
Bank overdraft interest RITEZFE 4 =
Interest on finance lease REEFR AT S 10 5
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not FEIR A {ELAEZFBR 2
at fair value through profit or loss A EZEeT B H 507 549
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including BADINARITEE ZHBKAE - B1F
term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in RIEERHE B HETEIEEBHEA
accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in AREREZERIZEHER - REBEZ
the loan agreements. For the year ended 30 April 2014, the interest E-MFEMA=1THILFE  HEIRE
on bank borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause SRIBE G 2 RITEE R E 5 Rl /493,000
amounted to HK$493,000 (2013: HK$534,000). BT (ZB— =4  534,00087T) °
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8. Income tax 8. UOO

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (@ oOO0O0000000000

80

comprehensive income represents: [jro
Group
ooo
2014 2013
oooono —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FET
Current tax BIHATH 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FRBISEFRSAR ((12EPNSRL)) 201 22
Under/(over) provision in prior year BEFERERETR (HREEdE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBTERH _ 112
EIT REMEH 74 (18)
74 94
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) R £ b R (E R
(T RER ) 628 -
Deferred tax (note 31(b)) EFERIE (FI5E31(b)) 788 (591)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year ~ RNEERERE S (KE) 1,691 (475)

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and Hong Kong has been made as the Group has
no assessable income for the year in these jurisdictions (2013:
Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”) is
calculated at the standard rate of 25% (2013: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income for the year as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

The provision for the PRC Land Appreciation tax (the “LAT") is
estimated according to the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowance
exemptions and deductions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

godoood
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE ==

8. Income tax (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

—EMA=1THILFE

8. 000 (&)

) OOOOOOOO00O0000

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: ooooooon
2014 2013
Ooo0oono —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oog THET
Loss before taxation BR7 Al &S 18 (32,891) (9,076)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, ?ﬁ‘*)ﬂfi/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%
calculated at the rate applicable to profits [& g A 2 B R EaT &
in the tax jurisdictions concerned M RIEE 2 2= TIE B (6,035) (1,908)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBAZ TG E (2,668) (6,880)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B S 2 TS & 7,073 6,421
Tax effect of unused tax losses ﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ
not recognised BEIBBEE 1,831 1,842
Tax effect of utilisation of BAAREANIE
unused tax losses BEzMBEE - (44)
Tax effect of temporary EERE R ERE
differences recognised B2 788 -
Tax effect of LAT THIBER 2 RIE R E 628 =
Under-provision in prior year BEFERENR 74 94
Actual tax expense/(credit) ERBESLE S GEA) 1,691 (475)
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O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. JO00OD0OO0OOOODOOOOOO
emoluments
(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 78 of (@) 2B 5 BBRARIEH (FRE) H
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 16116+ IRIEFTH B A 7EH (622
(Cap.622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Z) [RNEBIEHENESIE ¢

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows:

Year ended 30 April 2014

goooooooooooooO
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and henefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind honuses  contributions Total
ooo
ooo goo
0o oooo oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo oo ooo ooo ooo
Executive directors oooo
Vong Tat leong, David Bl
(Chief Executive Officer) (Thes) 5,400 600 6,500 - 12,500
Xu Siping BT 500 - - - 500
Independent non-executive gooon
directors 00
Fung Ka Keung, David it 100 - - - 100
Lam Lee 6. Hxe 150 - - - 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna Tk 100 - - - 100
6,250 600 6,500 - 13,350
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. 000DDODODODODODODODODODO
emoluments (Continued) (#%&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 78 of (@) 285 EERRIED (F32F) &
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 161165 WRIEFT BB A R KA (F622
(Cap.622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong ) ERNEBGEENEEH S !
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows: (Continued) (#)

Year ended 30 April 2013
HE-Z-=FmA=tH

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and henefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind honuses  contributions Total
2R i%a
ik ENEH gz st &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR e TAL TR TAL

Executive directors ooon
Vong Tat leong, David BEH

(Chief Executive Officer) (TToes) 5,400 600 - - 6,000
Xu Siping TR 500 - - = 500
Independent non-executive ooooo

directors oo
Fung Ka Keung, David BER 100 = - - 100
Lam Lee G. HHE 150 = - - 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna Xk 100 - - - 100

6,250 600 = = 6,850
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O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. JO00OD0OO0OOOODOOOOOO
emoluments (Continued) (%)

(b) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2013: (b) AfIEFMZEEALTA MG (ZF—=

84

two) are directors of the Company whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2013: three) individuals were as follows:

F:MR) RARRES  EMen Lk
A AW E - BT =8 (ZF—=
FZR) ALZMEFEMAT

2014 2013

goooao —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooO THT
Salaries and other benefits e M E AR T 2,076 2,194
Retirement scheme contributions RN T 2R 45 34
2,121 2,228

The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with the
highest pay are within the following band are as follows:

FHAN T THEZ =% (—F—=
o =R) FHBEEALABDT ;

2014 2013
ooooo —E—=
Nil — HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T 3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

10.Loss attributable to owners of the Company 10.0000000000
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company includes AR R BHRERERIE 2 AR REE AR
a loss of approximately HK$6,099,000 (2013: loss of approximately 15474 518 A 5 18 496,099,00078 7T (=&
HK$6,038,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements —=4F : [E538%76,038,000/8 7T ) °
of the Company.

11.Dividends 11.00
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the EFUIAEBFRNBZE - —MNFMHA
year ended 30 April 2014 (2013: Nil). ZTHUEFEZRE (ZE—ZF  8&) -

12.Loss per share 12.0000
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable BRENEIBIEARRHE AELEE
to owners of the Company of HK$34,582,000 (2013: HK$8,601,000) 34,582,000/ 7T (== — = 4F : 8,601,00075
and the number of 5,859,860,900 (2013: 5,859,860,900) ordinary 7T) RF A B B AT E 8 AR5,859,860,900%
shares in issue during the year. (ZZ&—=4% :5,859,860,900f%) 7T & °
Diluted loss per share equals to basic loss per share as there was no HREEE-_ZT—NFEER=_ZT—=FIA
potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding during the years ended =T RIEFEYEEBRTEC S TR
30 April 2014 and 2013. I HERESE RSN ERERESE -

00000000e %R 2014 85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oooon

For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE—Z—FN A =+ HILFE

13.Property, plant and equipment

1B3.00000000

The Group ooo
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
huildings held fixtures Utensils
for own use Leasehold and Motor and
carried at cost  improvements  equipment vehicles supplies Total
aoao
gooooao
agoooo gooon aoao
000 Doooobo aoao oo aoao oo
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thx Thx ThL Thx ThL Thx
Cost o0
At 1 May 2012 R_E-—FRHA-H 15,926 5,848 1,667 4385 560 28,386
Additions NE = 306 128 = 42 476
At30 April 2013 and 1 May 2013 RZE-=FNA=tAR
—2-=%%A-H 15,926 6,154 1,795 4385 602 28,862
Additions NE - = 65 = 7 72
Transfer from deposits paid for BEBES
acquisition of property, plant and ng - BER
equipment B SepE e - - 13 - - 13
Exchange adjustments fEH A% - 153 30 4 15 202
At 30 April 2014 RZE-MEMA=TH 15,926 6,307 1903 4389 624 29,149
Accumulated depreciation oooo
At 1 May 2012 WZE-—%8f—H 369 4898 1,122 2,789 466 9,644
Charge for the year NEEZH 442 592 29 822 40 2125
At 30 April 2013 and 1 May 2013 W-E-—=#WA=1HR
“Z-=%1A-H 811 5490 1351 3,611 506 11,769
Charge for the year REETH 442 344 184 534 36 1,540
Exchange adjustments AR - 138 25 4 3 180
At 30 April 2014 RZZ-NFNA=TA 1253 5,972 1,560 4149 555 13,489
Carrying amount ooo
At 30 April 2014 goooooooooo 14,673 335 343 240 69 15,660
At 30 April 2013 RZE-=4NA=1H 15,115 064 444 774 96 17,093

At 30 April 2013, the carrying amount of motor vehicles held under
finance leases of the Group was approximately HK$263,000. No asset
is held under finance lease as at 30 April 2014.
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

13.00000000 (&

AEBRBEPEBEORE 2 ARARIER
FERZHEEL W RET ZREEI N

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost, which is held under medium term lease,

is analysed as follows: T :
2014 2013
gooon —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
000 TET
Situated in: fp -
Hong Kong i 14,673 15,115

14.0000

AEERTHEE 2 BREBRNEERY
NREEREESTAT

14.Lease premium for land

The Group’s interests in lease premium for land represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their carrying amount are analysed as

follows:
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oog THET
Cost oo
Brought forward FECHT 1,654 1,654
Disposals nfi== (1,696) =
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 3 B 42 =
Carried forward whe - 1,654
Accumulated amortisation ogooo
Brought forward A 228 194
Amortisation for the year REZEEH 1 34
Write-back on disposal i S R 4 [ (245) =
Exchange adjustments BE i 33X 6 _
Carried forward 4 - 228
Net carrying amount oooao - 1,426
Leases of not less than 10 years but less than R HIR AN S A
50 years which is held under medium term TNOR10F (BT B505F
lease, held in PRC 24 - 1,426
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEMSZ2OMAT ¢
Current assets mMENEE - 34
Non-current assets JEMBNEE - 1,392
- 1,426
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Ogooooad
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE
15.Investment properties 15.0000
Group
ooo
2014 2013
oooono —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooa FETT
At fair value oooo
Balance at beginning of year FH 2 i 182,751 119,541
Additions NE
— acquisitions — B - 7,843
— capitalised subsequent expenditure —HERHESTBTEARN - 2
— through acquisition of —ERE—E
a subsidiary (note 35) MEAR (FisE35) - 51,980
- 59,825
Disposal k= - (10,340)
Net increase in fair value recognised RiEERER 2 AFE
in profit or loss b lIpEER 4,850 13,725
Exchange adjustments PE H R 281 =
Balance at end of year FIR R 187,882 182,751
The analysis of carrying amount of investment oo0o0oooooonnn
properties is as follows:
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ood TET
In Hong Kong BE
— medium-term leases — A EfFH 4 160,190 158,540
Outside Hong Kong BRI
— medium-term leases — R EfFH A 27,692 24 211
187,882 182,751
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

15.Investment properties (Continued)

The analysis of carrying amount of investment
propetties is as follows: (Continued)

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The investment properties are leased to third parties and a related
party under operating leases, further details of which are disclosed in
note 36(a) and 37(a) respectively.

At 30 April 2014, the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$84,400,000 (2013: HK$83,900,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(i)  Fairvalue hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

15.0000 (&

oooooooonnnocE)

AEBRA NG EHETAFFH ARIUE
SWASFEARRER G ZREYRE A
NHEEAGE - UHBERREMEAR -

KEMERBEEHELHEETE=R
N—REEAL  E—FFED RN
36(a) 237(a) 1 & °

AZT—NEMA=1+H  RNEEREY
¥ IR E {E 4 $£84,400,0008 T (— T — =
£ 1 83,900,000%7T) BEEAR T AREE 2
IRITREE IR (FIEE30) ©

ooooooonno
(i) 2 FEFR

TERAZBINZAGERENE ZRF
BEIRHREPARZEEEEETE -
YD EREBUBHREEINEBHRL
FEFEMAE 2 =R R FERE -
BRFEAEDBEZERIIE2EN
THERMAABBRZIBEEERE

BRI

% MIGE : S —REAME
(B B R A 8 B E
BT5 2 A EHERE) SR AT
-
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

15.Investment properties (Continued)

15.0000 (&

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs

i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using

significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs

for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs

ooooooooon (&)

()

RNFEER (B)

F_MEE: EAFE _RBARE
(AIRBEZEDE—RzABEB AR
B) BYREAERTABERE AR
BRI EZAFE - TABRERARE

REMSHE AR -

F=RHE EREATAERGBA
BBt E 2 AT E -

Fair value measurements

as at 30 April 2014 categorised into
00d0o00odDoDooooooo

ooooooo
Fair value
as at
30 April
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
0
ooooo
goooo
oooo Oooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHETT T FHET FAETT
Group ooo
Recurring fair value oooooo
measurement oo
Investment properties: REWE
Commercial — HK HE—-FE 90,000 - - 90,000
Commercial — PRC BE - 11,392 = = 11,392
Residential — HK T — &% 70,190 - - 70,190
Residential — Macau = — &P 16,300 = = 16,300
187,882 — — 187,882
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

15.Investment properties (Continued) 15.0000 (&

Fair value measurement of investment propetrties oooooooooo (4&)
(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () AFEZER (&)
BHE-Z-—NFHA=TRHILFE -
FE—REFE_RATEFEZELE
HE EBAZ-fKEE-RE
H e REBOBRANAFESERE
BHREEREEEEENRE R
R o

During the year ended 30 April 2014, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

AEBZABAREMEN T —NF
MA=1TBEHREE- - HEHBLA

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at
30 April 2014. The valuations were carried out by an independent

firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with the surveyors

BRfTHHEEENEREARAR
ET HERBBMNEMBENEL
BERANOIMEYMEAE R HE
BEMEETHEZRLR REITH

REEHREE BETHER - AKE
EHEED RS RAERR LG
B4

on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting date.
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15.Investment properties (Continued)

92

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

15.0000 (&

Oo0ooooooonn (&

i) BEE=RAFESEZEN

Relationship of

Range of unobservable inputs
Valuation techniques  Unobservahle inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value
ooooooao
oooo goooooooo ooooooo goooon
Investment properties
in Hong Kong
REBZREMR
— Commercial properties Direct comparison Adjusted market price 6,077 - 25,843 The higher the price,
—EENE approach (HKS$/square feet) the higher the fair value
BRABA KRR ME ERERALTEER
B/ FHR)
— Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market price 8,117 = 25,271 The higher the price,
- FEYE approach (HK$/square feet) the higher the fair value
BREABA KRRz ME ERUSAATEES
(Bx/FHR)
KRRz ME
(B/ BEHKE)

Investment properties in PRC
RARBZREMSE
— Commercial property

alCEES

Investment properties

in Macau
RRMZREMSE

— Commercial property

mlGEES

Direct comparison
approach

HENEZA

Direct comparison
approach

HENEA

Adjusted market price
(RMB/square meter)

AR mE
(ARE/FHK)

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

REmE
(Bn/FAR)

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC is determined using direct comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square feet/meter basis, adjusted
for a premium or discount specific to the quality of the
Group’s buildings compared to recent sales on the comparable
transaction. Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transactions
will result in a higher fair value measurement.
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 & ZE —ZT WM/ =+H tFE

15.Investment properties (Continued)

15.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3

fair value measurements are as follows:

oooo (&)

ooooooooon (&)

(i) BEFE=RLFETEZEF (&)

FRNE=RRATEFAEEHNEFEH
T~

HK$'000
FET
Investment properties — Commercial — REMHF — % —BA
At 1 May 2013 R-E—=%HA—H 89,200
Fair value adjustments NEEFARE 800
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—NEMPA=+H 90,000
Investment properties — Commercial — KEME —mE —+H
At 1 May 2013 RZZE—=FRA—H 11,111
Exchange adjustments B 5, G 2 281
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—NFMNA=+H 11,392
Investment properties — Residential — KREME -—FE-FF
At 1 May 2013 RZZE—=FRA—H 69,340
Fair value adjustments NEEAE 850
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—NFMNA=+H 70,190
Investment properties — Residential — REYE — FE — B
At 1 May 2013 R-_ZE—=FHH—H 13,100
Fair value adjustments NEEAE 3,200
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—NFMWA=+H 16,300
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15.Investment properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value adjustments of investment properties is recognised in
the line item “change in fair value of investment properties” on
the face of consolidated statement of comprehensive income. All
the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from the

15.0000 (&

ooooooooon (&)

(i) BHEE=RLFETEZEH (&)

BREWMERZ A TFEEFABRGAEZ@
WaRP A REMEZ A FEZE
—IHIIER c RBERRT A ZKEY
ERNFREL 2B RS ERRTE

investment properties held at the end of the reporting period. R o
16.Goodwill 16. 0 [
Group
oo
2014 2013
agoooo —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
oog TET
Cost oo
Brought forward and carried forward 0 7R fr 4582 11,383 11,383
Accumulated impairment losses oo0ooon
Brought forward 4] 6,752 5,171
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 4,631 1,581
Carried forward e 11,383 6,752
Net carrying value ogooo - 4,631
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 & ZE —ZT WM/ =+H tFE

16.Goodwill (Continued) 16.00 (&)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination had been allocated
to pawn loans business which formed part of financial services
businesses cash-generating unit (“‘CGU”), which is a reportable
segment, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate and budgeted gross
margin and turnover during the period. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. The cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%. The growth rate used
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a
discount rate of 11% (2013: 15%).

As at 30 April 2014, the directors of the Company evaluated that
the recoverable amount of the CGU was lower than its carrying
amount in view of persistent losses previously incurred and
management’s expectations for the market development. As at 30
April 2014, the recoverable amount of the CGU was HK$2,078,000.
The management of the Company recognised an impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$4,631,000 (2013: HK$1,581,000) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 April 2014.

The accumulated impairment losses on goodwill as at 30 April 2014
was HK$11,383,000 (2013: HK$6,752,000).

oooooooooonnnnn
0

AEBAHAELEZHBESRTEKRE
MRBEBREELBEM (REeELE
fi]) 2 —8nD 2 HEEHRER - MZRE
ELABMTYATRELE - ERRERH -

ReEFEM 2RO BIREEARE
TEDJrM?ZZF_ TEBRRIDEAZFER

CERERBEENEKURERESR
FEJ EFETENERACEREBR]EZ
AFHRMBREAEERARTRE - B
ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂziﬁﬁmhgﬁ{iﬁﬁi‘ﬁjﬁ%iﬁ

A ERENMTEARGELSE
LLL Z%%ZEHﬁii’:ﬁEE% * WEM
ERABEENR (ZT—=F - 15%) TR
e

R_ZE—MEMA=+H ' ARAES
T EHERBATRASEBEREEREY
MGEREZHE  ReEEBM 2K
EleEEREEAE  R=2FT—NFN
A=+RH REeEEBMZAKEESE
%mmwﬁﬁoﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

—OENA=FTHLEFEREES
% & 7% 2 TR (B B 18 /34,631,000 7T
—ZT— =4 :1,581,000/87C) °

R-E—NENA=+HZE;EER

B # & 5113830008 T (ZF —=F:
6,752,00076 7T ) °
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from

96

17.00 0000000000000

subsidiaries 00
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@ Ooooooooon
Company
ooo

2014 2013

ooooo —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

ooo FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRD - BZRA 136,072 136,072
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect 3 : EHRHIB AT ZIHE

of the investments in subsidiaries R REEE (136,072) (136,072)

As determined by the directors of the Company, as at 30 April
2014 and 2013, no reversal of impairment loss was made
for investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries because their
recoverable amounts amounted to zero.

HMARBEEAE R _FT—0
FR-ZB-=ZFMA=TBHLEAR
2EWMBAR 2B EBEIRERRE -
AAREZAIWEESELT -

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries () OOOO0000
Company
ooo

2014 2013

ooooo —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

ooo FAET

At 30 April REA=+H 399,175 420,838
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect  J& © 2 FLIE U B A R K IE

of the amounts due from subsidiaries MR ZBMEERE (149,368) (143,190)

249,807 277,648
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

17.Investments in subsidiaries and amountsdue from 17.000000000000000O
subsidiaries (Continued) oag (&

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued) () OOOO00O000 (4)

The movements in the allowance for amounts due from
subsidiaries during the year are as follows:

BB B A TR R G 2 B
o -

Company
oo

2014 2013
ooooao —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
000 THET
At beginning of year F1]) (143,190) (142,251)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE B (6,178) (939)
At end of year FIK (149,368) (143,190)

As at 30 April 2014, based on the recoverability assessment
performed by the directors of the Company, taking into account
the persistent loss-making and the financial position of certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries, provision for impairment loss of
HK$149,368,000 (2013: HK$143,190,000) was recognised by
charging an impairment loss of HK$6,178,000 (2013: HK$939,000)
to profit or loss for the year ended 30 April 2014 so as to write
down the amounts due from subsidiaries to their recoverable
amounts.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) Amounts due to subsidiaries

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

ATZ—NEPA=+H  REAA
A)EE B FTHETT 2 AT UK (30 48 3= 5 A R A
ERET2EAMNBRARARPEXZEER
1% R{E 181 15149,368,0007%8 T (=
T—=4F 1 143,190,000/ 7T) JIRAEZE
—E-NENA=F+HIFEE BN
"R 31 B Rk 1B 85 186,178,000/ T (= &
— = : 939,000 70) BIER - B
FEUBE A RS IBMOR = AT U B 258 o

FEM B A RIRIBEREEM - 28R
B R

() 00000000

BB AR RESEER  RER
EEEEN -
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amountsduefrom 17.000000000000000

subsidiaries (Continued) oo (&)
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TREHIEBHERSEER  BES
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group: BEZHNBARZFHE
Particulars of Percentage
Place of issued and of equity
incorporation/ paid up attributable to
business share capital the Company Principal
Name oooo/ aooo ooooo activities
0o oooo oooooo 0oooo oooo
Direct  Indirect
oo oo
E-Rapid Developments Limited BVI Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
RBRUES US$6,950,526 REER
L i80R6,950,5263% 7T
VG Investment Assets Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Incorporated (“VGI") RBREUHS EERIET REER
Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100 - Securities
BB BERAR B —REBR F5
Vongroup Consumer Finance Corporation BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBRLEE EERIET REER
Honning Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
RBEERAA &b —RE R MERK
Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 Technology & media
KBRUHS TRERIET and related
activities
Bl R IA K
BEEE
Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary = 100  Food & beverage
RBRIES/ US$6,950,523 businesses
B Non-voting deferred EHEHR

Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from 17.00000000000000O0O

subsidiaries (Continued) oag (&
Particulars of Percentage
Place of issued and of equity
incorporation/ paid up attributable to
business share capital the Company Principal
Name gooo / oooa ogoooo activities
oo oooo oooooo ooooo oooo
Direct  Indirect
oo oo
FtRIERAREHRETAA PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100  Financial services
([ RIBE 1) (note (ii) (P &E(i)) Y AE#10,000,0007T businesses
ERRBES
EERITERH (R BRAT PRC HK$23,000,000 = 100 Financial services
([BBIZE ) (notes (ii) & (iii) i 23,000,000 7T businesses
(B (i) B i) SRRBER
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100  Financial services
BB 100,000 Z 3% businesses
SRR RS
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
REEZERAT BE —RE @R EE
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
BEEXRRRA 0 — R E EAR MEER
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
ARBRAA £ — R E B EE
Champmark Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
RBEERAA 3 — R E B MEZEL
Allex Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
3 — R EEAR ES )
Mica Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
5 — R E B EE
Twinway Industries Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
5 —[RE B EE
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amountsduefrom 17.000000000000000

subsidiaries (Continued) oo (&)
Particulars of Percentage
Place of issued and of equity
incorporation/ paid up attributable to
business share capital the Company Principal
Name oooo )/ oooo ooooo activities
oo oooo oooooo ooooo oooo
Direct  Indirect
oo oo
United Luck Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
BEARAR 00 —RE R EE S
Maxfine Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100 Property business
REERAT B R S EE I
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
ARIEEER AR B —RERER EE IS
Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
EBARAR BB —RE R EE IS
Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
B —RE @K MEES
House2buy Properties Limited BVI/PRC Ordinary US$1 - 100 Property business
(“House2buy”) HRBEIES /FE  TERIERT EES)S
BXGNEERRA ([EX5))
BEReEMEREBRAT PRC HK$8,000,000 ~ 100 Food & beverage
(EREHEM]) (notes (ii) & (iii) e 8,000,000/ 7C businesses
(Bt i) e iii)) ERER
Notes: BfaE
(i)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or () EREEZECRMHEEZARS  E#H
vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of FREAEHIRE LIEE  URRNERKE
capital in a winding up (other than the nominal amount paid up or credited as fully BWHEGREE AR 2 FRBHEE (BRIFEAR
paid on such shares, after the sum of US$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed 100,000,000,000,0003% JT 7 )5 & I 9k T AR
to the holders of the ordinary shares of the Company in such winding-up). AEBERIEE AR - BREARG 2HEAKRS

AR 2 BRI

(i) JERBEE, BEmIZE and EFR S BEM are limited liability companies established (i) JERER - EBRRARERSEMARP B
in the PRC. T ZBRRF ©
(i) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Law. (i) WEPBUEEFMAIINEBERE -
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18.Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant 18.0 0000000000000
and equipment 00
Group
aoao
2014 2013
ooooog —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oog T
Balance at beginning of year FA &R 274 255
Additions NE 106 19
Transfer to property, plant and YR | R K R
equipment (note 13) (f37%E13) (13) -
Balance at end of year FRER 367 274
19.Available-for-sale investments 19.000000
Group
aoad
2014 2013
ooooo —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oog FAETT
Unlisted investments: ooooono
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) e - RRA () 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, IFELETEFIEE -
at cost (notes (i)&(ii)) LA AS (MEREG) K (i) 10,350 15,350
11,882 16,882
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BEERBEERE (9,430) =
2,452 16,882
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19.Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

Notes:

(if)

102

As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with an aggregate
net carrying amount of HK$2,452,000 (2013: HK$16,882,000) were stated at cost
less impairment because they did not have a quoted market price in an active
market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying amount of the
unlisted equity investments with a cost of HK$9,430,000 at 30 April 2014 (2013:
HK$14,430,000), taking into account the investees’ operating losses and the market
conditions, impairment loss of approximately HK$9,430,000 (2013: nil) has been
recognised and charged to the profit and loss for the year ended 30 April 2014. The
directors of the Company were of the opinion that the impairment was made based
on their best estimates with reference to the unaudited management information
of Newport.

Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments:

19.000000 (&

BFE

(i)

R-TE-NENA=+H BEEFES
2,452,000 75 (== — = £ : 16,882,000/% JT)
Z NS B Al S E T IR A A BRI E A
IR AARSYENERMSHRE B8
NP EGT 2 EEEA - REER BT 5
AEWHEZAFE-

ARBEEKEREKEELEBERTS
MRBERIN-_ZTE—NENA=+BZ
I | 8B 55 1% & AR A {8 A 2N /49,430,000 7T
(=T — =4 : 14430,000/87T) * BEEED
9,430,0008 7T (=T — =4 : &) B THR
REE-_Z-—NEMA=+TALEEZIBH
R ARBESTRARENLERSESE
NewportZ R 4EF % E 1B & FHE B Ex b5 M
e -

AARILNEFRE AN ¢

Carrying

At cost Impairment amount

ooao oo ooo

2014 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
gooog ooo ooo ooo
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 9,430 (9,430) -
10,350 (9,430 920

Carrying

At cost Impairment amount

R A BRTE(E

2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=%F FHETT FHET FAET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 14,430 - 14,430
15,350 = 15,350
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19.Available-for-sale investments (Continued) 19.000000 (&

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (48)

(i)

Unlisted equity investments: (Continued)
Honest Pro is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has

20% equity interest in ordinary share capital in Honest Pro through VGI.

The Group does not participate in policy-making processes, including participation
in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest Pro. The directors

(i

ARARZELETEFREZIHMN : (&)

Honest Pro BN RBR Z S EMK I 2 ER
Aa] o A& EFE BVGIAHonest ProZ AR A
ARG 20% A% 1

AEEERAF 2 HE BHonest Prom K AX B 8 1F
B fth 5 R 2R E FBORHIFT A o AR F]

of the Company are of the opinion that the Group does not exercise significant FEERE  ANEEYHonest Prolf EE A2
influence in Honest Pro. The investments are therefore accounted for under HKAS 7 MREBRBER S ELERARR

39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

Newport is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has
19.09% equity interest in ordinary share capital in Newport through Vongroup
Investment Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. During the year ended
30 April 2014, the Group recovered HK$5,000,000 from the return of investment
by Newport.

20.Inventories/forfeited collateral held for sale

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

(AT HEMTEEE] -

Newport B B iE Z B S 2 BRA
7] o ANE B E B AR Al 2 i & 2 RlVongroup
Investment Holdings Limited "ANewport 2 & 38 i%
ARPFEH19.09%5E - BE-ZT—NFMA
=+HIEFE - AEEB BNewportZ 1 & I
#H U2 1E15,000,00074 7T ©

200000000000

(@ OOoOOO0O0OO0OO0000

financial position comprise: 0o
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
000 THETT
Inventories — food & beverage products FE — 2% 3,871 6,979
Forfeited collateral held for sale (note) FESURWER M@
(Bf5E) 583 493

Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery.

st AR S BE RS R -
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20.Inventories/forfeited collateral held for sale 2000000000000 (&)
(Continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories ) OOOOooooooooon
recognised as an expense and included in the oooooooooonn
consolidated statement of comprehensive income oo

is as follows:

Group
ooo
2014 2013
goooao —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FET
Carrying amount of inventories consumed SOERFEZREE 10,332 9,728
Carrying amount of forfeited collateral sold K EWL SR R 2
FRMEE - -
21.Accounts receivable 21.0000
Group
ooo
2014 2013
goooa —F—-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooa FHET
Accounts receivable JE UG BR 3K 1,756 273
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREHE - -
1,756 273
The general credit term granted by the Group to its customers ranges REBHBETERP 2 —REEHR30E90
from 30 to 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its B o N&EE ¥R EE R KRR RERBRISE
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by o miigHAmeREEETHEN - K
senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are SEEEBR ZE — P IBEHRKIFE390)
set out in note 39(a)(i). (i) °
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

21.Accounts receivable (Continued)

21.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

oooo (&)

RMERAR - BUPRFZRESTAT

Group

ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E-—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FHET
Within 30 days K308 A 1,613 22
31-90 days 31E90H 15 41
91 — 180 days 91ZE180H 23 3
Over 180 days 15180 H 105 207
1,756 273

The aging analysis of accounts receivable that are not considered to be

impaired is as follows:

RIEE R E 2 FE W BR 5 2 BR Bk 2 AT 1A
s @

Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oog TET
Neither past due nor impaired ogoooooo 1,651 66
Past due but not impaired ooooooog
1 to 3 months past due BmENE3@EA - =
Over 3 months to 6 months past due BHER A3 E6ME A - =
Over 6 months, but less than B ERREGE A -
1 year past due BLM1F 105 207
105 207
1,756 273
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Oooood

Fort

he year ended 30 April 2014 BZE_—ZF—NFWUWA=+HILFE

21.Accounts receivable (Continued)

22,

106

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Moneylending loan receivables

21.0000 (&)

30 % 380 HA 7 R R (B 2 FE MR AR SR TS R 3P
HIENRS 2 TRBIEF B -

B8 MBI R (B 2 FEUR T AR SR B
SERRARERBIBITFAR - RIB
BERKS - EEEREHARZSTEHBRIE
HRERE  RASEEERYEERE
B MxFERIDRRFAEHKED - K
SEN BB F AR A R

2.000000

Group

ooo
2014 2013

ogoooao —F—-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
ooa FETT
Balance at beginning of year F4 4,784 23,026
Loans advanced BER 1,757 970
Repayment during the year FREE (2,180) (19,212)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 R 27 =
Balance at end of year FR 4L 4,388 4784
The loans bear interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 50.4% (2013: 5.25% ZEEF B FERENF5.25%250.4% (=
to 50.4%) per annum and are repayable according to the respective T— _¢ 5.25%250.4%) * W/AREE B

loan agreements which usually cover periods not more than one year.
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

22.Moneylending loan receivables (Continued)

2.000000 (&

(a) Maturity profile (@ o000
The maturity profile of moneylending loan receivables at the end REEEARERBNEEREHER
of the reporting period, based on the maturity dates, is as follows: BEHB AT ¢
2014 2013
ooono =%
Unsecured Unsecured
Pawn short- Pawn short-
loans term loans loans  term loans
receivable  receivable Total  receivable  receivable Total
0000 00000 HEER EREERR
0000 0000 00 JEYRE REER @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
0oo 0oo 0oo TR TEL T
Due within 1 month orondemand 18 AAZHK
REREE 841 3,247 4,088 1,001 3,351 4352
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 118 B /&{83(8 B juE| & - - - 68 - 68
Due after 3 months JERREIH - 300 300 = 364 364
841 3,547 4,388 1,069 3,715 4,784
As at 30 April 2014, no moneylending loan receivables were R-ZE—MEPA=+H" #&EpE

individually determined to be impaired (2013: Nil). WHEEREEARNBEEARE (=

—=F:E\)-
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

22.Moneylending loan receivables (Continued)

(b) Moneylending loan receivables that are not
considered to be impaired are as follows:

22,

oooooo (&

) OOCOOO0OO0O000000
oon

2014 2013

ooooo —T-c=F

Unsecured Unsecured

Pawn short- Pawn short-

loans  term loans loans  term loans
receivahle  receivahle Total  receivable  receivable Total

0000 00000 BEER RAEER
0ooo 0000 00 FEYRE EHEX @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooa oo TATL TAL TAR
Neither past due nor impaired BRI ERE 132 3,247 3,379 478 3,351 3,829

Past due but not impaired EafETERE

Less than 1 month past due SAEMEA 345 - 345 282 = 282
1to 3 months past due BE1E3(EA 7 - 7 = = =
Over 3 months past due AR EA 357 300 657 309 364 673
841 3,547 4,388 1,069 3,715 4,784

Moneylending loan receivables that were neither past due nor

impaired relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

108
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

23.Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

23.000000000b0b000n

Group Company
good ood
2014 2013 2014 2013
00000 —£—-=% 00000 —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo TAET ooo TAET
Prepayments TRERR 1,255 2,856 - 21
Rental and other deposits HekHEMize
(note (iii)) (B % (i) 8,566 1,357 - =
Credit card receivables EAREYFIE 43 109 - =
Loan interest receivables A e=E sy - 131 - =
Rental receivables idgitkn 71 667 - =
Staff advances (note (i) I8 (FIzEd) 103 150 - =
Other receivables (note (ii)) H 4t AR FR (BT EE(ii)) 26,377 22,150 - -
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,720) (2,720) - =
Other receivables, net HAth U AR FUFE 23,657 19,430 - -
33,695 24,700 - 21

Note:

(i) The Group’s staff advances represent advances to the non-director employees. The

advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable in accordance

with the repayment schedules agreed by the staff and the Group.

G

() AEBZBETRRERFEFRERBRMHZE
e WWEBRDEEIR R IRARERE TR

RNEBIHE 2 EFHREE

B H fth & Us AR SR BR 2 2 %817,765,000745 7T
(ZZ—=1F :16,962,00087C) FEEKIEHH
RARZ I EREMEE 2RI - BEBHA
B RIE AN Bz Y2 2 Fra R AR
M REEETEBRBERAAMRZMER
—E--MFEEA=tRETHBEZGHTE
25,316,000 THEE T AEE - AERERAE
SEZER - ARREERA - BB 2K
B - R ABER IR ERE

(i) Included in other receivables isan amount of HK$17,765,000 (2013: HK$16,962,000) (ii)

which represents the right arising from termination of the available-for-sale
investment in relation to Tian Da. The debtor has agreed to transfer the title and
ownership of a property located in the PRC with an estimated market value of
HK$25,316,000 at 30 April 2014 valued by Asset Appraisal Limited, to the Group for
the settlement of the debt owing to the Group. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the debt would be fully recoverable and no provision for impairment is
considered necessary.

EREE R EMRDERARRZ 507,754,000
BT (ZT—=%F: &) DN TFRNERS
BRBFEEZEERE - ZHENBRBEE TN
BRAERE -

(i) Included inthe balance of rental and other deposits was an amount of HK$7,754,000 (iii)
(2013: Nil) paid for a proposed investment for which the due diligence is still in
progress. This deposit will be refundable subject to the result of due diligence.
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

23.Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

23. 000000000 ooood

(Continued) (#&
The movements in the allowance for other receivables during the year FREMEREREE 2 ZBT
are as follows:
2014 2013
ogoooao —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo THETT
At beginning of year F4) (2,720) (2,720)
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE - =
At end of year FK (2,720) (2,720
The impairment loss recognised was a provision for the long EERZBEEESREBANRIBRE
outstanding receivable for receivables were considered doubtful. The EEMGRIBEH MBS - B EUGRIBH R
Group did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over BREE - NEEWRRZELEHRFTHEM
these balances. EH S B E B -
Except for rental and other deposits which are refundable, all of the RARER S MEMIREIN - T iR
other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to be ® - FENERRE A W BR SRIEHA AT R —

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

FRHESERRFX

24.Equity investments at fair value through profit or 2.0 0000000000000

110

loss
Trading securities oooo
Group
odn
2014 2013
ogoooo T —=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo THTT
At fair value: BRATE -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong EELTEERE 32,815 26,804
Listed equity investments outside Hong Kong BELIMIR 2
FHESFRE - 73
32,815 26,877
Note: BfisE -
The fair value of the listed securities are determined by reference to their quoted market FTHEHFREZAFEIRREBHR2EFEES
closing bid prices available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the reporting TESR NI BEABEE -
period.
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25. Deposits placed with financial institutions 25. 000000
The amount represents deposits placed with financial institutions for ZHIEEREBEIFMERN BIME
trading securities. The amount carried interest at interest rates which T3k WK0.01%Z£0.08% 2 FFIE:H8 (=
ranged from 0.01% to 0.08% per annum for the year (2013: 0.01% to T —=F : 0.01%=0.08%) °
0.08%).
26.Cash and bank balances 26. 0000000
Group
aoao
2014 2013
ooooao —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
0oo THETT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAE A 47,905 65,081
Time deposits TEHF K 3,742 8,988
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated GEPBIRRE R
statement of financial position and the RERERERZENZ
consolidated statement of cash flows HeMEeEEIER 51,647 74,069
Company
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —_EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo FHET
Cash and bank balances IR MIBTTAEER 16,092 17,022
Time deposits TE HATE 3K - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement BB REY 2IRE K
of financial position B4&EEER 16,092 17,022
The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged TFRRIRIT 2R & RFRIRO%ELT7% (=
from 0% to 1.7% (2013: 0% to 0.65%) per annum. T— =5 : 0%ZE0.65%) ZFHM=EFTE -
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27.Accounts payable 27.0000
The aging of the Group’s accounts payable is analysed as follows: RNEE 2 AR 2 RIS AITIAT -

Group

ooo
2014 2013
ooooog —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FET
0 — 30 days 0£30H 413 443
31 —90 days 31£290H 557 691
91 — 180 days 91£180H 137 90
181 — 360 days 1812360 H 437 35
Over 360 days H#iE360 H 449 445
1,993 1,704
The accounts payable is non-interest bearing and are normally settled ERERR R R B RS AR —# R90H -

on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the accounts payable at the
end of the reporting period approximates to the fair values.

28.Accruals and deposits received

112

FERN AR R & R 2 FRmE E S 2 FEH

++

Eo

28.0 00000000

Group Company
ood ood
2014 2013 2014 2013
ooooo =—£=—=% [0O00ooo =—=%=—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
000 FAET ooao FET
Accruals FERTERIE 6,424 5,621 - 2,696
Accrued staff benefits fEETE TR 4,533 4,949 - -
Rental and other deposits BlHEE kEMIES
received 1,828 2,370 - =
VAT and other tax payables  JEfHIZ{EF &
HAb IR 479 66 - -
Other payables H Ath FE - 5B 77 66 27 27
13,341 13,072 27 2,723

Included in accruals of the Group and the Company are amounts
of approximately HK$ Nil (2013: HK$850,000) and HK$ Nil (2013:
HK$350,000) respectively representing accrued remuneration due to

the Company’s directors.
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29.Finance lease payable

2.00000000

Group
oon

Minimum lease

Present value of

payments minimum lease payments
gooooo ooooooooo
2014 2013 2014 2013
ooooo Z—E—=f 00000 2 Z—E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
0ooo FET ooo FET
Amount payable: ooooao
Within one year —FR - 132 - 125
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA - 72 - 70
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRAER - - - -
Less: Future finance charges B RIREE B - 9) - -
Present value of finance lease payable — JEfS R &4
HIEIRE - 195 - 195
Less: Portion classified B BN EARE
as current liabilities BEHD - (125)
Non-current portion FERBN L D - 70

The finance lease was in respect of the Group’s motor vehicles. The

lease term is 32 months. For the year ended 30 April 2014, the average

effective borrowing rate was 5.9% (2013: 5.9%) per annum. The finance

lease payable was fully settled during the year ended 30 April 2014.

BMERYEAEETESR - HEPA32
A - REE—_ZE—NEmMA=1+HI%
E - FEHEREERAEFS% (=T —=
F:59%)  REE-_ZT—NEMNA=+H
IEEE - ENRERYTEE 2 HEE -
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30.Bank borrowings 30.0000
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as follows: RITESERBEZSOMT :
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ogoooo —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FERT
Current liabilities gooo
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FAIEEEMEF
repayment within one year which contain a MAERZEERR /Tf)(Z
Eodhvd
repayment on demand clause RITE SRS 1,939 1,918
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FIREYEE T E F
repayment after one year which contain Bt B 1R 2 SRAEE R
5 3 1 4
a repayment on demand clause ZRITEHE RS 34,043 35,986
Total #Et 35,982 37,904
As at 30 April 2014, total interest-bearing bank borrowings were due N-ZE—NFNAB=1+H - BHEE 2t
for repayment as follows: BHRITEERENT ¢
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo FET
Portion of term loans from banks due for oooooooo
repayment within one year oooooooo 1,939 1,918
Term loans due for repayment after oooooooo
one year (note) uooooooo
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEERMEAN 1,965 1,918
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREREFA 6,056 5,755
After 5 years RF® 26,022 28,313
34,043 35,986
35,982 37,904
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in MizE : ZEIHeBEERBSERMEMTH
the respective loan agreements. ZEEBEER
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30.Bank borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings of HK$17,341,000 as at 30 April 2014 and
HK$18,334,000 as at 30 April 2013 were secured by certain investment
properties with fair values of HK$46,400,000 and HK$46,700,000
respectively. The interest is charged at 0.7% per annum over 1-month
HIBOR, and capped at 2.5% per annum below prime rate for both
years 2013 and 2014.

Bank borrowings of HK$5,289,000 as at 30 April 2014 and HK$5,558,000
as at 30 April 2013 were secured by certain investment properties with
fair values of HK$16,000,000 and HK$15,200,000 respectively. Interest
is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at
2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years 2013 and 2014.

Bank borrowings of HK$6,903,000 as at 30 April 2014 and HK$7,240,000
as at 30 April 2013 were secured by certain investment properties with
fair values of HK$22,000,000 and HK$22,000,000 respectively. The
interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over 3-months HIBOR, and
capped at 2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years 2013 and
2014.

The balance of bank borrowing of HK$6,449,000 as at 30 April 2014
and HK$6,772,000 as at 30 April 2013 were secured by the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings held for own use carried at cost (note
13) with net carrying amount of HK$14,673,000 and HK$15,115,000
respectively. The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month
HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for both
years 2013 and 2014.

30.0000 (&)

R-_ZE—mMEMEA=+tBFE T —=
M A =+ 8 % 5l A17,341,000% 7T &
18,334,000/8 7T 2 SRITIEE Ti 7 BIA A F{E
46,400,000 7T 246,700,000 T 2 & T 1%
BYEEEF s T =FR_T—NF
MEZF B E—EABBRITRAERE
h00.7/E 2 FFEUE - IFF X LR AR
BEF R 2.5 -

NRZE-—NENA=1tHR-_E— =N
A=+ 8% 3l /45,289,000 Jt 55,558,000
BT Z IRITEE T BlILA R F1E16,000,000
7570 K.15,200,00078 70 2 & T IR E W (EIR
o —B—=—FER-FJIERE 2L
HiE=AAEBEITRERSI2BEZ
FRRUE - MFEFE R AREEFE
JB2.75E °

R-_ZE—NFNA=+BE A _ZE—=F
A=+ B % 3l 46,903,000 7T 57,240,000
BT Z IRITEE T BILA R F{E22,000,000
785 7T 522,000,000/ 7T 2 & T IR E W EIR
B —_T—=ZFER_TIEREZFE
Hiz=@EABBRTRAERSINEZF
FIRUGER - M FEF R _ LR A EEF R
25 o

R-_ZE—MFENA=+HE AR -_ZE—=F/
A =+ B % Bl £6,449,0005% 7T 126,772,000
BT Z RITIEBESR I AREERAFE
7 Bl 414,673,000/ 7T 515,115,000 T 2
ARSI EFF1EQ R 2 HE i RIEFE
IR (HE13) e —E—=F R -_T—F
ME2FBIIR=EAEBRITRZERE
M2BEZENERGFE  MEMNELRR
SEENZEFH2.75E -
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31.Income tax in the statement of financial position 31.00000000000

116

(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial

@ 000000000000

position
Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo FET
At beginning of the year FH4] 22,079 22,101
Provision for the year NEZEME
— PRCEIT — REBEMREH 201 22
— PRC LAT — B+ I E 628 -
829 22
Tax paid E AT IE
— PRCEIT — R ZEFTIS (17) (22)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNEH - (134)
(17) (156)
Tax refund EIRENIE
— PRCEIT — BB EMRET - 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BAENEH 22 -
22 18
Under/(over) provision in prior year BAEFERETIR
(tBRERE)
— PRCEIT — REBEMRET 74 (18)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMNER - 112
74 94
Exchange adjustments bE H, 35 B 560 -
At end of the year FE 23,547 22,079
Analysis of income tax: FRB Rt -
Tax recoverable A el R IE - (22)
Tax payable AT 7R IE 23,547 22,101
23,547 22,079
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31.Income tax in the statement of financial position 31.00000000000 (&)
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: ) OOOOOOO00000
0oon
Fair value
Accelerated change in
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
oa aood
oooao oooono 00
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHETT FABTT
At 1 May 2012 R-T——FHHA—H (591) - (597)
Credited to profit or loss (note 8(a)) 5T A 825 (Ff#E8(a)) 591 - 591

At 30 April 2013 and 1 May 2013 R=-ZT—=FWMA=+A%

—E—=FRH—H = = =
Charged to profit or loss (note 8(a)) A Bz (Hi7£8(a)) = (788) (788)
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—MFmPA=+H = (788) (788)
Deferred tax assets are to be recognised for the carryforward of BEHIBEEDRAEE 2 RBAH
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future THE 18 T LARERR » MDA R BEA R 2K FE
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax R A B ER S R B AT B E e A
losses can be utilised. R o
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect 7N & B 3 K 7 57 /5 [#8164,855,0007% 7T
of tax losses of HK$164,855,000 (2013: HK$149,154,000). The MEEBRZELEREEE (ZE—=
unrecognised tax losses, mainly attributable to Hong Kong F 1 149,154,000/ 70) ° RIERZ T IE
companies, can be carried forward indefinitely. EBIEFEREFEN A @ A EREL

4 o
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31.Income tax in the statement of financial position 31.00000000000 (&
(Continued)

(c) Withholding tax ( OO0

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on RERBEPEMETHE BTN
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC F—H—Hie - FEMBA AR
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has U M 90 Ik AR BB BN TR o B
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements 7N £ [ A 47 o) 43 (o) S e = R 2 PP ]
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits BERZEZBRA ARG EE -
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,309,000 0 4 A B B BB R B P BR B A
(2013: HK$944,000) as the Group is able to control the timing 1 2 B Z%E1,309,0008 T (Z &2 —=
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable F 1 944,000% 7T) RNERE MK AE
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable HEIETE T B o

future.

32.Share capital 32.0 0

Group and Company

goooooo
2014 2013
ooooo “T-=%
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
nooo 0oo Kin# 8 TR
Authorised: JEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each BHREE0TET
Lk 200,000,000,000 200,000 200,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :

At beginning and end of the year RNENRFR 5,859,860,900 5,860 5,859,860,900 5,860
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TEREFEAEABRBME ISR S
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at WHENRANRANBIRERE S ERR MK
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard —ZE-EEEBRERNFRRBREEZTA
to the Company’s residual assets. RISHIAL o
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33.Share option scheme 33.00000

The Company adopted a new a share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the New
Scheme include the Company’s directors, including non-executive
directors, employees of the Group, any other groups or classes of
suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and
the Company’s shareholders determined by the directors as having
contributed or who may contribute to the development and growth
of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
remains in force for 10 years from that effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the New Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during the
period commencing from the date on which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted. There is no minimum holding period before an option may
be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options under the New Scheme were granted and outstanding
during the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2014.

ARBR T ——FNA =1 BERAH
BREE ([#1518))) B EREAEHE
EBFL RS BER2EEFL BB K
El% - T8l 2 A ERSEEBEARF]
ZEZ (BRIFATES) AKEES -
AEBE A E MR KRR 2 HER - B
B OHBARER UREFRRIELK
KRS AREXRBFERIIERBER
ZARBBR o BRIFEATTHEHRIER] -
DR EREEREA YRS TFA—ER
e

RIBHETE > REBER LM RITELZ
BRERITERE TS &2 ) ERBER
AR BEE IR BT 2 10% ° EE
-+ —{EAHE - FerEl 8BRS EE
R 2 RS K 2 AT RITRD LR AR
REEE R D BT 21% ° BIME
B R BV AERRAE £
FERURHLAE -

BRI EMES  THREHIARFEEMNR
B RS2 BB A LT 2 BRRE ¥
BELERNR 2B IEITERIE ©
AN+ fEFME(E + =18 A SR T A A A
FERRIBUIFERNTESHRE 2EM
BB AT 2 BIRE 2 BEBBARRREL
AT 2 37T AR D 2 0.1%3X 4848 (IRIEAR R
AIRHBEREEBARRKRG ZE H KT
BxHE) #8385,000,00078 7T  BEBIERRER
e FERFEIE -

ERAAEROBRE 2 ZZE BB
“t-HRAXMNRBERIE T ERZNRE
BRMERES - BREITREEARE R
EmEEREMmA (HEFNEEARA)
RIBE RS AR IR 5T BRI TIE - 1EBRAHIR
TREBA H B AR L MERE R
FEETTF - BREITEA Y ERERSAH
MR e

BREZITEERHESEE - ETEE
RTIIEEE : (ROEREE A AQE
B An B X B 2 W AE 5 (i) AN & RIRR A0 0
ERREBRES BT LEAR S BEBR
ﬁgzzﬁi’ﬂﬂk?ﬁfg S (INENNCIE S}
R

BREYEE TRHEAZTBEREHNIR
AELERRZRER -

REBEZE-_ZE-—=FR_ZF-—MNFMA=+

HILFE - SIEERECRENERH
i ARTTHE
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34.Reserves 34.00
The reconciliation between the beginning and the end of the year of RNEBGRE S AR END R F VN 42
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the ZHEEHENGEERE IR -  ARAER
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes BRI D R E REF KL 2 B EFIEH,
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the HEAT -

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Company ooo
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
0o oo
ooo oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FET FET FET
(note a) (note b)

(Ff&Ea) (Bf&ED)

At 1 May 2012 R-_E——FHAF—H 540,586 262 (284,799) 256,049
Loss for the year KEEEIE = = (6,038) (6,038)
At 30 April 2013 R-ZE—=FHWA=1H

and 1 May 2013 ;r=—ZFE—=%HAF—H 540,586 262 (290,837) 250,011
Loss for the year REEEIE = = (6,099) (6,099)
At 30 April 2014 RZZE—NFMNA=+H 540,586 262 (296,936) 243,912
The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2014 available for distribution RARAFR_ZE-—MFNA=THIREBEHRS
to owners of the Company as calculated under the provision of the HENAEZ HERMETErHO IR FARA
Companies Law of Cayman Islands are approximately HK$243,912,000 BIHER A Z I #)5243,912,0008 0 (=&
(2013: approximately HK$250,011,000). —=4F : £9250,011,00057T) °
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34.Reserves (Continued) 34.00 (&

Nature and purpose of reserves oooooon

@) Bi7aEk

(a) Share premium

(b)

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which
the Company’s issued share capital has been diminished on the
cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be
applied by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be
allocated to shareholders of the Company as fully-paid bonus

B s BREAXRAERERADA
FIRE - REFASBESAAE K7
HBERZEZAIDIRTARARR -
HARREREREZEKEREKREH
BINBRRNEREREEKH I
2B »

(b) RAGE LI

RABEREETIRAR D HETRARE
EEHEBERMD ML 2 &5 - 1R
BRERERAE > AABAFEA
BORFEARIXNARBRREDE
ZAREITIRAD - EREBRBGRATR -

shares.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve (€ SZERERFEE
According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of BIERRRZHBIB AR ZEEE
association, the PRC companies are required to transfer 10% of RAR - FEAFMNERBRERRS
its net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC 5178 Bl N 38 01| 7EE T2 22 10% Bk i 42 40 1) #8%
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. FEERGBFHEE EECRBRELS
When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of FRIE R B A BIFEM & AN 2 50%0F - 7]
the PRC company’s registered capital, any further appropriation BERLELNE DB - BEBEZ
is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be made before RENER D IRILE TR 2 AT#ETT
distribution of a dividend to the shareholders.
Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ EEBARFEEITRIERBEATFEZ
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital in proportion to B8 (A) - WARIR A F RO
their existing shareholdings, provided that the balance after such EERBFEEBEERARA - HEERE
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital. ZEBPEOREMERZ25% ©

(d) Exchange translation reserve (d) FES(#E

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(p).

[ R R R A RBE B AN W
BRERMELE ZFBINEZRR - %
IR R 2(0) T a2 SRR IR -
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35.

Oo00doo
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE
Acquisition of assets 35.0000
In July 2012, VGI acquired assets through the acquisition of 100% RZZTE—ZFt A VG E BKE

36.

122

equity interest in Freemantle Capital Investments Limited (together
with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dynasty Kingdom Limited), at a

consideration of approximately HK$52 million.

Freemantle Capital Investments Limited (E[7]
H 2 & [} B 2 ADynasty Kingdom Limited)
EEREMBAERE - K1E%352,000,0007%

7T|: o
The assets acquired in the transaction were as follows: REGMBAZEERT :
2013
E
HK$'000
FHET
Assets acquired: ooooood
Investment property (note 15) wEMF (MEE15) 51,980
Utility deposits INSES L3 sn 20
Total consideration ‘R E 52,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: ooooDoDooooooo
Cash consideration HEREB (52,000)

Operating lease arrangements

(a) As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, typically with leases negotiated for

3.000000
@ 00000

AEERBELEHORFHEEKRE
W (Ms15)  —REHAME -

terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also require KGR — M IR KA A ST A%

the lessee to pay security deposit.

Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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36.0perating lease arrangements (Continued)
(a) As lessor (Continued)
At 30 April 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases with
lessees falling due as follows:

3. 000000 (&
@ Ooo0oo0o0 (&)
R-E—pEmA=+A  KEER

BARREKEHORN T2 H A 7]
WOER AR 2R e W aR (B A A SRR AR R

Group
goao
2014 2013
ooooao —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
oo FHET
Within one year —F R 2,500 4,861
In the second to fifth year, inclusive MERF (BIEEERS) 82 1,985
2,582 6,846

(b) As lessee

At 30 April 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) OO000

R-ZE-—MFOA=1+H  AEER
PRI EBN 2 RENAGERT
SRR 2 H

Group
ooo
2014 2013
ooooo —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo TATT
Within one year —F R 6,973 6,535
In the second to fifth year, inclusive MERF (BIEEERT) 15,091 20,614
22,064 27,149

The Group leases restaurant premises and offices under non-
cancellable operating lease arrangements with lease terms
ranging from two to six years.

AEBERBETAHEEEROLEAE
ERBYERNAE PN TFRZE
FREE @
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37.Related party transactions

124

(a) 1n addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions and balances with its related parties during the year:

37z.000000

(@) BRRZERBRREMUTT TR

R RAEHIN  AEERAFREAE
BN TEITATR S R AEeR -

Related expenses/(income)
oooomooo

As at 30 April Year ended 30 April
gooooo goooobooood
2014 2013 2014 2013
ooooo Z—=% 00000 ZE—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
000 THET ooo TET
Legal fees and corporate EMEARARNEER
secretarial fees (note (i)) (B &Ex) - 346 551 551
Rental income (note (ii)&(iii)) MU (i) K (iii)) - (445) (445) (445)
Note: FifsE

(i)  The legal fees were charged for legal services rendered by a law firm, a
partner of which is a close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.
The corporate secretarial service fees were charged for services rendered by a
corporate secretarial firm which is controlled by a close relative of a director,
Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.

(i) The rental income was received from a company, of which is controlled by a
close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.
(ili)  The Group leases out an investment property to the related party in note (ii)
above under an operating lease arrangement for a term of three years. The

terms of the lease require the lessee to pay a security deposit.

As 30 April 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating lease with lessee falling due as follows:

(i)

(if)

(i

AEBE O —HEMELHN (AR A% A
REZFEBRE AR REEERBX
NEREER - ARMEREZERTIFHAES
BEH LA ZMBPTES 2 ARME R RIPTR
HIRFE M ST -

FZREREER - RS REVEEN -

HEWAK B EERE=HEE ZITRAESZ

A -
FB RSN - 8 RS -

RNEERBL SR OB LS ()BTl 2
BEATHA—EREYE  AA=F -H
DERE AT SRR E -

RZZE—MFEOA=1H  AEERETAH
SHAC ALV T 51 EI B B AT WHRR SR FE AR AR
THARIREHE

Group
ooa
2014 2013
ooooo —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo FHET
Within one year —FR - 390
In the second to fifth year MERF (BIEEREMF) - =
- 390
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37.Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of directors and key management during the
year are as follows:

37.000000 (&

() OOO0000000

FAESFRFEZEBEEASZH &
T ¢

Group

oo
2014 2013
ooooo —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo FET
Short term employee benefits RHEEEN 13,350 6,850

38. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 3.000000000

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as discussed below.

(@ 0000000000

RERMAE B S BUER (FPI R
2) ZBRF - BEEELRMEAKRT
BABAMG AT 2 KRR R E M B HRRMEDL
ETEZRE - BEBRRKAETEE
BR TRV RFEHEERARYZ
FEEELEAARZEARAR © &
WUNR o
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38.Critical accounting estimates and judgments 38.000000000 (&)
(Continued)
(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (@ OOOO0000000 (&)

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment () Y% - BERRE AEHTFR
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful AEEEREEEECANE  BE
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant K& 2 fhE Al A 4 A R AR
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical MEER - st DRBBRBEL
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant B E RIDREMRE 2 W
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could = M B AIE R F M
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and fEH c AREMTE 3 R F 8 F
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. EERETERBAMELITE
Management will increase the depreciation charge where ZAGET A BE IR E R EE) o Al
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will FREFHEN LA G 28
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic ERERESITEERR 3B
assets that have been abandoned or sold. RS K B 2 B AT A B sk FE R B

& ESH MR

(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (i) Y% - BE KRR ERE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair AEMWE G ELE N TERE
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing ENAEFREERET Z2RE
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted EoEMAEERAEER - h&HE
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that FFARRBEREUREHREE
reflects current market assessments of the time value of B £ 23R E QA R IR B
money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires MG hc EBRERZEER
significant judgement relating to the level of revenue and ERBE AR E - WHEE
the amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily I AKE RSB AERE KR
available information in determining an amount that is FI o Kﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, HaREOEBEESEGE B85
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable $ETJ%AEE&—J§%ZTEP“M&%
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating ATEEERAR 2 HEFEITHE o
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant HErEE# @J—Iﬁﬁaﬁé%ﬂ%@
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result BEEERTYE WAENE
in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment KRR BRI AT 4R %EM\ ﬂﬁiﬁﬁi
in future periods. BRIDFHRZBIE °
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38.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Estimated fair value of investment properties

(iv)

v)

The investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period by reference to comparable market
Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are

transactions by independent qualified valuers.
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgment, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of receivables and moneylending loan receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon an evaluation of the recoverability
of the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and other receivables, where applicable, at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of
the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and other receivables balances and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of
the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
allowance may be required.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The goodwill was fully impaired and recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 30 April 2014 (2013: HK$1,581,000).

38.000000000 (&

@ Oo0o0000o0ooO (&)

(iii) EYFEZ a1t 2 F1E

BREMERRERRBBLEE
RGEME2ZRELBET SR
& - ZFHEIRES TR
FET BARKRIRNTHEE
AR YRR ERERTFES
RER - EIFHHER - AEH
EZERAEEENEREET IS
REZER TEEAEERE
EREHREFHRAEL 2R

(iv) [ERARIRRIE R EWILEE

(v)

00000000e %R 2014

REREPR - ARERBRK
BRAK - MR EE R R E At B U
B (R ) Z AT Bl R 2 ff
A BRRBORERE - ARG
AEOIRBEYEIRR - BUREE
TR % L A R IR A Bk 2 R K
FE Se ¥ SH RS SR BR T e B 2 RR A
B WREAZMBARABL
Al BEZRARAEH BN IR E R

TGk 8

ETmERSHIRER - Afh
AESEREBECRESELEMNZ
EREE SAREEREER X
SEAGABEHEREELEN
EEZRRREREREE 28
RERAFTHEIRE ©

HECRBEE T —MEMA
= +tHLEFEZERELNER
PR (ZZT— =4 : 1,581,000/
JT) °

127



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

38.Critical accounting estimates and judgments 38.000000000 (&
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (@ 0000000000 (&)

i) TZEf#E

(vi) Allowance for inventories

128

The management of the Group reviews its inventories at the
end of the each reporting period and make allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer marketable or suitable for use in production.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting
period and make allowance for obsolete items.

consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future.

The current taxation for the year ended 30 April 2014
was income tax charge of HK$1,691,000 (2013: income
tax credit HK$475,000). The carrying amount of deferred
tax liabilities, tax payable, tax recoverable as at 30 April
2014 were HK$788,000 (2013: Nil), HK$23,547,000 (2013:
HK$22,101,000) and Nil (2013: HK$22,000) respectively.

Vongroup Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

AEEEEER SRS HREH
HEFE  Ur#b R TBARM
LHENERNEEZRERF
HEEHBFLEE - EEEX
EREBEFMPERERRBRTH
o EEFAEBEE 2R #RF
B NREBEREHEHRZER
EmEERETE  UHKRER
BFH B -

(viii) Income taxes (viif) BT 27
As at 30 April 2014, no deferred tax asset (2013: Nil) in RZZE—NEFWPA=+H " #R
relation to unused tax losses of HK$164,855,000 (2013: REETEET H &)@ F R R - il £
HK$149,154,000) has been recognised in the Group’s RARK B 276 Mtk & A sk

AR {F FA 5 TH f§5 18164,855,0007% 7T
(= F — = 4 : 149,154,0007% 7T)
BRELEHEEE (ZT—=F:
&) REBEEE SR X
ZEANBRETAIESEAR
RonFERT TR -

BE_Z—NWFMUWA=1+HL
FEZHBHEBEBAMABHR IS
1,691,000/ 7T (ZF—=4F : Fi15
T 475,000 7T ) o ELEFIITE A
& EARERATREFER=
TE—NEMA=+RHZERED
Bl /788,000 7T (ZF — =4 -
)~ 23,547,000 T (= & —
% :22101,0008 L) R E(ZZ
—=4F : 22,000/87T) °
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38.Critical accounting estimates and judgments 38.000000000 (&)
(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgments in applying the () OOOOOO000nnnn

Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carryingamounts of some assets and liabilities,
the Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. These estimates involve assumptions about such items as
cash flows and discount rates used. The Group’s estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and expectations
of future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to
assumptions and estimations of future events, judgments are
also made during the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment.
Judgment is required when determining whether an impairment
existed. In making this judgment, historical data and factors such
as industry and sector performance and financial information
regarding the investee and certain specific conditions surrounding
the transactions giving rise to the investments are taken into
account.

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, deposits placed with financial institutions, equity
investments, borrowings, accounts and other receivables,
moneylending loan receivables and accounts and other payables.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

oooon

EEEREEENBE I REER -
AEERZFEERBBERREHR
ZTRARREBRZZEIEHMRR -
ZEEFERRERERAERZR
RBERZBEZ - AEEERRERZME
AT R R B THAR B IR 2R 2 48 B S FEURI I
HegEma - RERKEHEZMRK
Kfbatoh - B BAKREEARERZ
BRI E L FIE o

AR ERE

A ERERKARBIESK - B
ERBHBBETRELHE - RME
HARRHIER - BEBBUARITE
RANRER - BERKED ZHBER
ARRRIREMER S B2 ETH
EBERERARITERE -

39. 000000000 Od

(@ 000000

AEBEZTIE2RBIABERS IR
THS%  SRBEBETER  FFRE -
B BRUBRF R E AL YRS - &
YA 1B & SR A % AT B 3 e LAt P A
IR - M TAZFHITHRER A B
at e ,\EQ%Eﬁ*IﬂﬁﬁﬁZHﬁﬁ@%
*'JTJ—L &Hx$f T&)—L Zzﬂﬁ
B¢1 RZFRRZBREN TN - R
BEREEREREEZFRR - AHE
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39.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the

risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and
moneylending loan receivables, in order to minimise
risk, the management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. With respect to accounts receivable, other receivables
and moneylending loan receivables, credit evaluations of
debtors’ financial position and condition are performed on
each and every major debtor periodically. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the debtor operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of accounts
receivable and unsecured other receivables. In respect of
pawn loan receivables under moneylending loan receivables,
the Group held collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold
and jewellery, for securing the debts. Debts are usually due
within 30-90 days from the date of grant or as agreed in the
respective agreement. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debts at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group and the Company’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.
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39. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00 000000000 (4&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ ooo0ooo (&)

(i) Credit risk (Continued) () =B (&)
In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and FLRE U BR SR - EL b FE Y BR SR K FE
moneylending loan receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit WHEERME  AEEEXZ
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of EERREEZERGEHAZE
each debtor. The default risk of the industry and country BT E c B ALEMEITE
in which debtors operate also has an influence on credit ERBR 2 ZARBRITTZEEER
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no %o MIEHR  AEEWES
significant concentrations of credit risk which individual AZEERBERER - mEHR
balance exceeds 10% of the total accounts receivable, other FREA R A PR U BR SR« H b FE LR
receivables and moneylending loans receivables at the end AR ERREE F A S AR
of the reporting period. KH,210% ©
The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited RehBHeEEEE ZEERR
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings R BERARSHFRERBREE
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. AR MBS TRIE BT RIT °
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s EREAEEAZRERWERR - &
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, W 18 B 3R R H b FE U BR SR
moneylending loan receivables and other receivables are set EvEERRE 2 HMEFHAREED
out in notes 21, 22 and 23 respectively. BRI FE21 ~ 22]%23 °
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to ARRIZEERREERBEK
amounts due from subsidiaries. The Company reviews the B ARKIE - ARARNSME
recoverable amounts of individual debts at the end of each HAREHENES 2Tl ER
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses B AEES TN E S EEY
are made for irrecoverable amounts. R BIEREE °

(i) Liquidity risk (i) TEEZER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEBASBILEERERTE
for its own cash management, including the short term EREEETE  BERSAKRZ
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to RERE RERE RN TEER
cover expected cash demand, subject to board approval. The CHEKEAEEESS2HEST
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected EE - AEBE 2 HR AT EERA
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending HRTEHRBSECS - RETE
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of BERHE  UEREEFAVREN
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major BRI 2 BEEIRS R HEE
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the BemE  NENESHRRER
short and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings BELHF K  AEEKBRITEE
as a significant source of liquidity. RERNMEERHIR °
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39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period
of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

39.00000000000 (&

(a)

ooooon ()
(i) mEEzER (&)

UNTZRnBETEBRREENA
MABBZHAEREREEZR
SERARRMBEBENREH
RZBTEHNBR (BEREOFN
e (HAZEBNX) RREHR
ZBRRFREFEZ MBMAF) - A
Ko N6 B Ko AR X B AT AR B SR AT K
ZEFHH

Group aooad
More than More than Total
Within 1yearbut  2yearshut contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
gooo gooa gooo gooono
gooo oooono 00000 Oooo0Oooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
gono ooo gono aoo ooo
2014 ooooo
Accounts payable FETBETR 1,993 - - 1,993 1,993
Accruals et ZE 6,424 - - 6,424 6,424
Accrued staff benefits fE:t 8 Tia A 4,533 - - 4,533 4,533
Other payables Hih el zia 77 - - 77 77
Bank borrowings BITEE 35,982 - - 35,982 35,982
49,009 - - 49,009 49,009
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39. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00 000000000 (4&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a OO0000 (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE (&)
Group (Continued) ooo (&)
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

—FR%  BEF  EEME  AOAMR
BEX  ERMEFR  EREFR RERELE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TATL TR TATL TAT

2013 oooono

Accounts payable e BETR 1,704 = = 1,704 1,704
Accruals ezt TR 5,621 = = 5,621 5,621
Accrued staff benefits e E T/ 7 4,949 = = 4949 4949
Other payahles Hith et zE 66 = = 66 66
Bank horrowings BITEE 37,904 = = 37,904 37,904
Finance lease payable ERRE RN EZE 132 72 = 204 195

50,376 72 = 50,448 50,439
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39.Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00000000000 (#&
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) @@ oooooo (#&)
(ii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZER (&)
Company oono
More than More than Total

Within 1yearbut  2yearshut contractual

1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

gooo gooa gooad gooon
goo oooono ooo0o0 Oooo0ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
gono aoo gono aoo aooo

2014 ooooo

Amounts due to subsidiaries  JES i B A 7IZE 16,100 - - 16,100 16,100
Other payables Hit e TIE 27 - - 27 27
16,127 - - 16,127 16,127

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

—ER%H BiRh—F BBAME  SHRER
BREX ERMEAR  BERLERN RERELF FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TR TAT

2013 goooo

Accruals fEztFIB 2,696 = = 2,696 2,696
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JESfi B A 7IZIE 36,097 = = 36,097 36,097
Other payables HiERZIE 27 - - 27 27
38,820 - - 38,820 38,820
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39. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00 000000000 (4&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ ooo0ooo (&)

(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEEzREE (&)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within 1 year or on demand” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2014, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$35,982,000 (2013: HK$37,904,000). Taking
into account of the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, as follows. However, in accordance with Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
(lassification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause, all such bank loans have
been classified as current liabilities.

Maturity analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

M EIR ESRE R ZRITE
BT EMEERADHEAT—F
RFIRER | ZBHEA - RZF
—MFEmMAB=+H " ZERTE
B 7 R EE ) /335,982,000 7T
— & — = 4F : 37,904,000 JT) °
et RAEBZ BB - AR
RIEERARITIARETHERS
BERARER - AARESFR
R RERITEEBREBEER D
ZFTEUA T B EER B HEEE
o R BIEFBREESRY
BHREZER - BRAHBE
PERFEREBERCEHERZ
D TERSRTEREDE
RREARE -

oooooooooooooao
ooooooooooon

The Group ooo
More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow
oooo agooo ooooo
ooo ooooo o0o000o0 0000 0OO0OO0OO0O
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT AT TAT TAET
30 April 2014 ooooooooooo 2,414 2,414 7,243 28,225 40,296
30 April 2013 R-E—=FNA=1H 2,414 2,414 7,243 30,531 42,602
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39.Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00000000000 (#&
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a 000000 (&)
(iii) Interest-rate risk (iiy) 7= s
Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits, deposits BRETREBIRITHER - K E
placed with financial institutions, moneylending loan TR BRHREER  RITEE
receivables, bank borrowings and finance lease payable, RENBEMRLFKIBIN - NEE
the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and WEEAGFEEERAE A%
liabilities. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are EzBARKEEREANR E
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. BTSN E 2 B8 - IR1T77F
Bank deposits, deposits placed with financial institutions and K DREET R IR E ) =
bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group B ZRITEEFEASERAR
and the Company to cash flow interest-rate risk. The other AEYRSRENEELR - B
receivables and moneylending loan receivables issued at JE U8 BR R R 32 (& FE M) SR B I 2 fE
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. WHREEREAEERERES R
Finance lease payable at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair SMERER - HEEMNEFTE 2
value interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s finance lease FE A R & AR A RRIA (0 AR & B T
payables and bank borrowings have been disclosed in notes NEENERRE - BEANEEE
29 and 30 respectively to the financial statements. NRERNRIBRIBITEE ZFF
1B B2 9 Bl 7 B 75 3k 3= Bt 529 K% Bf
FE30HEE o
The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to 7 £ (B 0 4% 5T N7 A fA] 1) 2R 45 HA A
hedge its exposure to interest risks. PRI 2 AR @ g o
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated AEBRERENERREE
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate arising ERRAEB 2B LEERMESE
from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar borrowings. ZBABRITRIZEREFERE -
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39. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00 000000000 (4&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a OO0000 (&)
(iii) Interest-rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEEf (&)
(i) Interest rate profile () FIZ=BR
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFFAEEBBENRES
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: AR 2 FI=HER
Group
ooa
2014 2013
ooooo “T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
oooo BIRA X
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
0oo TiEx
Fixed rate borrowings: 0000000
Finance lease payable ENRERNTR - - 5.9 195
Variahle rate borrowings: 0DooDon
Bank borrowings RITEE 0.9-25 35,982 0.9-2.5 37,904
Total borrowings BEE 35,982 38,099
Net fixed rate borrowings Bl X EEFE
as a percentage of total HREEFE BN
net borrowings - 0.51%
Finance lease payable of the Group which is fixed-rate AREZ EANRERONE
instruments is insensitive to any change in interest rates. RIREEFNRGTHE 2 TA
A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting ;ﬂ}{‘JﬂT%%EUIT@QW °

period would not affect profit or loss. iﬁﬁj{ﬂﬁ-z £ E) G T

At 30 April 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/ RZZE-—MNEMA=+H"

decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates would fh et 5 B R R =8 R

increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and 91001.%%5%¢Eﬂﬂ//@69$

accumulated losses by approximately HK$300,000 SERBHREBEERREEBR

(2013: HK$317,000). #9300,0008 7T (=T —=4 :
317,000%7T) °
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Interest-rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of
the next annual reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and PRC.
Entities within the Group are exposed to foreign exchange
risk from future commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and will consider entering into forward foreign contracts to
reduce the exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily Renminbi (‘RMB”) and United States
Dollars (“‘US$”). The Company is not expose to material
currency risk at the end of the reporting period.

39.00000000000 (&)

@ oooooo (48)
(iv) & (&)
() AXEERR

TRALAREERFE AR
REBERYEERUINE
KiHEZCDHREEX AR
MEX2EBEAR EL
tREBZEEIZ/RAR
BETAR®K]) RET (X
Te1) o ARANHMEHRL
BERHEAEEER

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$’000)

ooooooo
gooOoooono
Group
goo
2014 2013
ooooo “T-=F
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
D00 fla] ARE e
Accounts receivable FEURER SR - 1,560 - -
Cash and bank balances Re RRITERS 7,108 5,843 4,009 13,882
Deposits placed with SREETN
financial institutions 1,053 - 279 =
Overall exposure arising from ERREERAE
recognised assets and liabilities  FTEE 2 ZERR 8,161 7,403 4,288 13,882
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

39.00000000000 (&

(@ Oo0000 (#&)

(iv) E¥ER (&)

(i)

BUREDT
TRETRBSHRAEH
P X B K AL 2 SN T 2R
ZEREAEEY MTAE
ERREEE (RREER)
HIRZ B -

2014 2013

00000 —T-=F
Decrease/ Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) on loss after (decrease) on loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
ooooag BRI ER R
oooo ooooo SN RREER
00MO00 DO0DmMOooo EAR/(TE) R /(Em
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo TAT
RMB NG 5% 341 5% 179
(5%) (341) (5%) (179)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the annual reporting period and had been
applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate
over the period until the end of next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects
on each of the Group entities” loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2013.

(v) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss (see
note 24).

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are
based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities compared to other industry indicators, as well as
the Group’s liquidity needs.

39.00000000000 (&)

(@ 000000 (&)

(iv) E¥/ER (&)

(if)

BREDNT (&)

Iz B8 15 E R B R S
KEZRHAET—EFE
BEPRAEHR 2B -
B E - TIREETEE
TTRZBBEZRERAREE
ERARETHEMEE 2
BEZEFNZHFE - £X
JIRZDMEREBAEEE
RERBRBRENEE
RAENEEEHIZN RSB
RAEDIRZ ERRRH &
P B LT B 2 B 2 BT R
E T —=F2ZHMTMN
MERIEAEETT -

(v) RAEREEE

AREBRIZANFEUEZRIEZ
BHEEMAZRELFRER (R
Bizr24) o

AEE 2z EHEFRENRBR AT
EH - BEIHEBEEESF 2R
ENERE R ERERESFAY
REMITREFRZRAARARE
Bz R@ESHFEMEL -
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZE T —UFWA=+HIFFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00000000000 (4&)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ oo0o0o0oo (&)

(v) Equity price risk (Continued) V) REEEER (&)

At 30 April 2014, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease) RZE-—MOMFEMWA=+H"E

142

of 5% (2013: 5%) in the underlying equity prices of the equity
investments listed on the Stock Exchange, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) as follows:

Eﬂﬁ“\ﬁﬁtm,‘z »REZA

BERE LA (THK % (ZF

— =5 1 5%) MATA EMmEH
B B AREZRBRER
(RREER) BEW T RATR

b/ K
Group aogoad
2014 2013
ooooo “T-=f
Decrease/ Decrease/
(increase) (increase)
on loss after on loss after
tax and tax and
accumulated accumulated
losses losses
oooooo BRBREER
oooo ZREEE
00mooo WL/ (Em)
HK$’000 HK$'000
000 THET
Change in the relevant HEERERRE
equity price risk variable: i
Increase 0 1,370 5% 1,122
Decrease By (5%) (1,370) (5%) (1,122)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change iﬁ(@&”*ﬁ%ﬁim RERESE

in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) that
would arise assuming that the reasonably possible changes
in stock prices had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to equity price
risk in existence at that date. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
the relevant stock price over the period until the next annual
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(vi) Fair values

0

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

39.00000000000 (&)

(@ 000000 (&)

Vi) 2N-FE

(i)

00000000e %R 2014
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

39.00000000000 (&

@ ooo0ooo (4#&)

(vi) Fair values (Continued) Vi) ~FE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value ) BAFEIRZUBEER
(Continued) afE #&)
2014 ooooo
The Group
ooo
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ooo ooo ooo oo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo 000 goo ooo
Assets od
Equity investments at fair value BRATEWERSIEZ
through profit or loss BHELE 32,815 - - 32,815
Total oo 32,815 - - 32,815
2013 —T-=F
The Group
AEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& F-H E=H Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT ThEx THET
Assets od
Equity investments at fair value BAFENERYIRZ
through profit or loss BHFRE 26,877 = = 26,877
Total 0o 26,877 - - 26,877

During the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2014, there
were no transfer between level 1 and level 2, or transfers
into or out of level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ogoodn
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00 000000000 (4&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a OO0000 (&)
(vi) Fair values (Continued) Vi) 2F1E (&)
() Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value () BAFEIEZHMBEEERE
(Continued) & (&)
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of HIR] T & B = R AP EE
financial assets BZHk
Group
aoad
2014 2013
ooooo —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo THETT
Derivative financial instrument ooooono
— Termination Right 0000
Balance at beginning of year FHEERR = 16,159
Disposal e - (16,159)
Balance at end of year FRERR - =
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) FFBAFEIRZMBEE
other than fair value RaEzAYE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 7N (B 2 i AN o 8 K AR B
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost, except for IRz A TABREE (RN
those available-for-sale investments of which the fair B s 9B 5 EG) AT RE L A FE A
value cannot be measured reliably as detailed in note TeEr SEatE 2 AT &%
19 note (i), are not materially different from their fair BN BN _FE—=F K=
values as at 30 April 2013 and 2014. T-—MFEFOMA=F+RHZAYF

BEYEEAER -
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 HZ—Z—FW A =+HILFE

39.Financial risk management objectives and policies 39.00000000000 (#&
(Continued)

(b) Capital risk management (b) OOOO000O

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
gearing ratios as at 30 April 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

AEEEREAZ BNAREREHE
FEREZ8e N URBRREHEHR
RREMESR A AR - Wik
FREEARRBARBEEARRA -

AEEAEBHBN FRRZK
B2 BEEATRRIBITHK

AEEREABHRERELR  BE
LR TRER A MBI RARZEE
BRI E R —IF
A—Z2-—=FNA=+HZARLX

W

Group

ooog
2014 2013
gooooo —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooQ FHIT
Bank borrowings RITIBE 35,982 37,904
Finance lease payable FET B & 405k IE - 195
Total borrowings BEBE 35,982 38,099
Total equity R 265,888 299,640
Gearing ratio BELE 0.14 0.13
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For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE

40.Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carryingamounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

40.0 0 000D OoOoooboooonon

RBREHREH BT AR ZREELD

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: K
Group Company
goo goao
2014 2013 2014 2013
gooooo —T-=F 0oooo —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
000 TR 000 TET
Financial Assets oooo
Financial assets at fair value BATERERTIER 2
through profit or loss: PBEE
— Held for trading: -KEEERE
Equity investments at fair BATFENER
value through profit or loss SIBR 2 BEHEE 32,815 26,877 - =
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 2,452 16,882 - =
Loan and receivables; kWA
— Accounts receivable — RUBER 1,756 273 - -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — R B A Al F0A - = 249,807 277,648
— Moneylending loan receivables - EYHEER 4,388 4,784 - -
— Loan interest receivables - ERERFE - 131 - =
— Rental receivables - s 71 667 - -
— Other receivables — H R URBR K 23,657 19,430 - -
— Staff advances - BI8 103 150 - =
— Credit card receivables - ERREYGE 43 109 - =
— Deposits placed with - PRBETER
financial institutions 6,423 13,362 - =
— Cash and hank halances —Be RRITERR 51,647 74,069 16,092 17,022
88,088 112,975 265,899 294,670
123,355 156,734 265,899 294,670
Financial Liabilities oooao
Financial liabilities measured RBERATEL
at amortised cost: IKaE:
— Accounts payable - BRER 1,993 1,704 - =
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — BB A RIFE - = 16,100 36,097
— Accruals — [ERtE0B 6,424 5,621 - 2,696
— Accrued staff benefits — s B TREA 4,533 4,949 - =
- Other payables — AR 77 66 27 27
— Finance lease payable - ENRERNTR - 195 - =
— Bank horrowings —RITEE 35,982 37,904 - =
49,009 50,439 16,127 38,820
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oooood

For the year ended 30 April 2014 & —=

—MEFEONA=THILFE

41.Possible impact of new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2014

148

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and interpretation
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2014 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities'
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and HKAS 38 and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
and HKFRS 7 Disclosures’
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liahilities'
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets'
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

HK(IFRIC)- Int 21

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

3 Effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2014

9 Available for application-the mandatory effective date will be determined when
the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January

2016

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e
gooddad
For the year ended 30 April 2014 &Z —ZF—N&FN A =+HILFE
41.Possible impact of new and revised standards, A.000000000000000

amendments and interpretations issued but not O0O0O0O0O0O00OO0Oo0cOoOooo

yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2014 0000000000 O00oOooon

(Continued) (%)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the AREBIRFHGTERYPERLEHRT R

impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the CUSET R B G REER| 2 8 « T4

period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption HARM ST  EA R RESS

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated HIE AR REREEEATLE o

financial statements.

42.Comparative figures 42.0000
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current EFLhREFEEEHNIE  LFENEE
year's presentation. ZE25HR e
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

oooon

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities

AT EERR 2 AEERO R EMBRFEZ

of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis as BERMGREFEUREERBEZMESNT ¢

hereunder stated is as set out below:

Consolidated Results

gooo

Consolidated for the year ended 30 April

ooooooboooooo

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
goooo —B—=%F —T——-—F —T——F —_T-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo FHT FHT FHIT FHT
Revenue e 25,939 34,216 27,650 52,112 102,784
Loss before taxation MR E IR (32,891) (9,076) (41,151) (10,283) (7,183)
Income tax Fr St (1,691) 475 (69) (280) (757)
Loss for the year REEZEE (34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (10,563) (7,940)
Attributable to: TFE L -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NIE ] (34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (7,674) (6,507)
Non-controlling interests e PRt E - - = (2,889) (1,433)
(34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (10,563) (7,940)
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities O0o0oooo
Consolidated as at 30 April
Doooooooo
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ooooog —E—=F —F——F —FT——F —T-IFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo FHT FHET FHET FHT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 341,539 374,616 384,194 427,635 425,266
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (75,651) (74,976) (75,952) (78,708) (60,058)
265,888 299,640 308,242 348,927 365,208
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
oogod

Locations Existing use Term of lease
oo gooao oooo
Investment properties

agooa

Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, Residential Medium term
9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong *= A
BEETEGTHE T 1EIEEE

Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong F= -t
BANBAME RE89 8 B FSEMEHE

Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong x= FRER
BENEAWME SE85EEmF7E10EBE

Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong F= R ER
BABNEAME A5 EmE7R10ECE

Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space Residential Medium term
No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, F= F HA

No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNEFNTAEE1REERR T1E43EDE R F2-08357 E ML

Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Residential Medium term
Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau = AR

R i Hr 5 K 55 B S PI 2518 A BE

Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, Commercial Medium term
58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong [EES =a)i=13
BB ERRNERSS-ARTEEmET U2EARBE

Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term
of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong {£= B

FENEAME RE85 /B F6IZ6045 (EFEHAL
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

HRERERE
Locations Existing use Term of lease
oad agooao gooao

9. Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term
of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong {£= R B
BERNEAME SH85 8 AMFE6025R T EHEA

10. Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term
of Harbour Place, 8 i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong {E= B
BBNEAME =T858 EmF6iE637 R EEEN

11. Office E, 22nd Floor, EGL Tower, Commercial Medium term
83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong EES B
BB NREBEBEESREREES2IEEE

12, BINTAON @A 12335736065 Commercial Medium term

[GES A

13. Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, Commercial Medium term
No. 55 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong EES H HA
BB NEBEREGSSH 2L E S T 4504
Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost
gddodoooooooooooboao

1. Office A, 17th Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Commercial Medium term
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong SES H Hf
BERNEEEREES3IT R ES17EAE

2. Car parking space No. P25 on 1st Floor, EGL Tower, Commercial Medium term
83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong [EES H Hf
BB NEEERE B3 R RE RS 118 EP255k B

152 Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2014




vongroup



